
ESS 
Electronic Services System – Coordinating Committee Meeting 

Agenda 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 
November 7, 2019 

10:15 A.M. to 1:30 P.M. 

ESS Coordinating Committee Agenda – Updated November 1, 2019 

 Welcome and Introductions 

 September 19, 2019 – ESS Coordinating Committee Meeting Summary – Approval 

 Financial Reports 
o BOA 2019 3rd Quarter and YTD Report and 

Fund 255 FY 2020 1st Quarter Report and YTD Report – Approval 
o Office of the State Treasurer and State Auditor Briefings – Discussion 

 
 ESS Budgets  

o Revenue Trends and Sustainability – Discussion 
o Consolidated Budget Plan: Chart of Accounts – Approval 
o Fund 255 FY 2020 Budget Amendment – Approval 
o BOA CY 2019 Budget Amendment – Approval 
o BOA CY 2020 Budget – Approval 
o BOA ESS Treasury Management Account – Approval 

 Contracts and Agreements 
o Local Service Provider FY 2021 COLA – Discussion 
o Bergan KDV CY 2020 Engagement – Approval 
o DOT & Department of Revenue – 28E Agreement Templates – Discussion 

 Policies and Procedures 
o CY 2020 Meeting Calendar – Approval 
o 2019 Policies and Procedures Update – Discussion 
o PCI and Security Policies – Approval 

  Key Project Updates 
o E-Submission 2.0 Recorders’ Interface – Discussion 

 Production Update 
o Web Design and Content Management Update – Discussion 

 Other Project Updates – Discussion 
o Quarterly Stakeholder Newsletter 
o 2019 Fall Campaign Plans 
o ILR Fall Conference Recap 
o ILR Deputies Conference – September, 2020 
o Stakeholder Update – Bob Rafferty 

 PRIA Update 
o Document Rejections Paper 
o PRIA Bylaws Update 

 Adjourn - Next Regular Meeting February 6, 2020 

Note: A joint meeting of the ICRA Executive Board and the ESS Coordinating Committee will immediately 
precede the ESS meeting at 10:00 AM. 

1



 
Electronic Services System 
Coordinating Committee 

Meeting Summary 
September 19, 2019 

 

Participants 

Deb Roberts, Floyd County Recorder    Nancy Booten, Lee County Recorder  

Julie Haggerty, Polk County Recorder    Travis Case, Grundy County Recorder 

Lindsay Laufersweiler, Webster County Recorder  Eric Sloan, ICIT 

Diane Swoboda Peterson, Woodbury County Recorder 

Other Participants 

Phil Dunshee, Iowa Land Records 

Lisa Long, Iowa Land Records 

Kati Ross, Iowa Land Records      

Welcome 

The meeting of the ESS Coordinating Committee was held via teleconference. The meeting was called to 

order and introductions were made.  

Meeting Summary 

The August 8, 2019 Meeting Summary was reviewed. Nancy Booten made a motion to approve the 

Meeting Summary. Julie Haggerty seconded, and the motion was approved.  

ILR Staff Compensation Adjustment 

The Committee reviewed a staff compensation adjustment for Senior Developer Mansi Agarwal. Diane 

Swoboda Peterson made a potion to accept the staff compensation adjustment as presented. Nancy Booten 

seconded, and the motion was approved.  

ILR Staff Hiring Authorization  

The Committee reviewed details regarding a new hire for a Technical Support Coordinator. Developer Anil 

Kodey recently left the ILR team to accept another position. Nancy Booten made a motion to authorize the 

Iowa Land Records Project Manager to hire Merna Addison for the Technical Support Coordinator position. 

Lindsay Laufersweiler seconded, and the motion was approved.  

Content Management Update 

The Committee was provided with an update on the creation of the new landing pages for the Iowa Land 

Records website. Mock-ups of the new home page were shared.  

The Meeting was adjourned at 10:30 AM.  

 

2



ESS Subcommittee Nominations 
 

 
 
 
 
FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE  County  Term  District 
Vacant  Vacant   1/01/19 ‐12/31/20  3 
Stacie Herridge  Story   1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  1 
Jo Greiner   Washington   1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  5 
Sheri Jones  Jones  1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  6 
 
STANDARDS SUBCOMMITTEE 
Deb Winke   Allamakee  1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  2 
Joan McCalmant   Linn  1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  6 
Vacant  Vacant  1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  1 
 

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE 
Lindsay Laufersweiler  Webster  1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  1 
Julie Haggerty   Polk  1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  1 
Ann Ditsworth  Dickinson  1/01/20 ‐12/31/21  3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



Sep 19

Income
BudgetedIncome

Bad Payment Fee 30.00

Event Income
ILR Conference Registration 3,600.00

Total Event Income 3,600.00

POSSERVICEFEE 5,450.75

SERVICEFEE
ACH 57,768.00

CC 6,007.81

DRAWDOWN 8,634.00

Total SERVICEFEE 72,409.81

Total BudgetedIncome 81,490.56

RevolvingIncome
ERECORDING

AUDITORFEE 22,700.00

TRANSFERTAX 852,531.20

ERECORDING - Other 599,521.00

Total ERECORDING 1,474,752.20

Expense Reimbursement - CLRIS 28,073.50

Misc. Revolving Income 452.20

POSPAYMENT 181,648.50

Total RevolvingIncome 1,684,926.40

Total Income 1,766,416.96

Expense
Budgeted Expenses

Accounting
Accounting Software-Services 139.98

Bookkeeping 4,400.00

Total Accounting 4,539.98

Administrative Support 1,327.50

Education and Outreach
ILR Annual Conference 200.75

Total Education and Outreach 200.75

Local Maint. Expense 259.86

Marketing-Communications 3,293.75

Office Tech Support 400.00

Payment Expenses
Bank Account Analysis Fee 985.18

BOA Merchant Service Charge
BOAOLN 430132313509772 Mer Acct 7.89

BOAOTC 430132313849862 Mer Acct 7.89

Total BOA Merchant Service Charge 15.78

Gateway Transaction Fees
POSTransactionsFees 8,654.90

Total Gateway Transaction Fees 8,654.90

Total Payment Expenses 9,655.86

Project Management 5,500.00

Software Dev. - Programming 17,125.43

Software License-Maintenance 2,321.40

Total Budgeted Expenses 44,624.53

1:53 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis September 2019

Page 1
4



Sep 19

Depreciation Expense 4,435.61

Miscellaneous 57.48

Planned Reserve Expenses
Software Development-Consulting 6,915.00

Total Planned Reserve Expenses 6,915.00

RevolvingExpenses
Annual Audit 2,250.00

Computer Equipmnt 20,932.14

Computer Software 235.12

Dues and Subscriptions 914.04

Education and Outreach-Rev 395.00

ESS Committee
Official Publications 25.11

Total ESS Committee 25.11

ESSPayments
COUNTYDISTRIBUTION 1,474,789.20

POSDISTRIBUTION 186,878.91

Total ESSPayments 1,661,668.11

Legal Fees 2,000.00

Merit Resources 16,154.00

Postage and Delivery 477.00

Total RevolvingExpenses 1,705,050.52

Total Expense 1,761,083.14

Net Income 5,333.82

1:53 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis September 2019

Page 2
5



Jul - Sep 19

Income
BudgetedIncome

Bad Payment Fee 120.00

Event Income
ILR Conference Registration 5,850.00

Total Event Income 5,850.00

POSSERVICEFEE 20,446.46

SERVICEFEE
ACH 179,871.00

CC 15,532.92

DRAWDOWN 30,276.00

SERVICEFEE - Other 0.00

Total SERVICEFEE 225,679.92

Total BudgetedIncome 252,096.38

RevolvingIncome
ERECORDING

AUDITORFEE 70,760.00

TRANSFERTAX 2,894,957.60

ERECORDING - Other 1,852,681.20

Total ERECORDING 4,818,398.80

Expense Reimbursement - CLRIS 67,620.55

Fund 255 Repayment 24.44

Misc. Revolving Income 452.20

POSPAYMENT 683,548.07

Total RevolvingIncome 5,570,044.06

Total Income 5,822,140.44

Expense
Budgeted Expenses

Accounting
Accounting Software-Services 419.94

Audit 625.00

Bookkeeping 13,200.00

Total Accounting 14,244.94

Administrative Support 4,417.50

Education and Outreach
ILR Annual Conference 398.70

Education and Outreach - Other 174.45

Total Education and Outreach 573.15

Local Maint. Expense 269,544.30

Marketing-Communications 10,043.75

Office Tech Support 1,200.00

Payment Expenses
Bank Account Analysis Fee 2,761.13

BOA Merchant Service Charge
BOAOLN 430132313509772 Mer Acct 15.78

BOAOTC 430132313849862 Mer Acct 71.17

Total BOA Merchant Service Charge 86.95

Gateway Transaction Fees
POSTransactionsFees 29,855.79

Total Gateway Transaction Fees 29,855.79

Total Payment Expenses 32,703.87

Project Management 16,800.00

1:52 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through September 2019

Page 1
6



Jul - Sep 19

Software Dev. - Programming 66,114.10

Software License-Maintenance 2,504.75

Total Budgeted Expenses 418,146.36

Depreciation Expense 13,306.83

Miscellaneous 57.48

Planned Reserve Expenses
Software Development-Consulting 13,830.00

Total Planned Reserve Expenses 13,830.00

RevolvingExpenses
Annual Audit 2,250.00

Computer Equipmnt 20,932.14

Computer Software 780.04

Dues and Subscriptions 1,343.74

Education and Outreach-Rev 1,020.00

ESS Committee
ESS Committee Travel 257.79

ESS Meeting Expenses 210.86

Official Publications 175.78

Total ESS Committee 644.43

ESSPayments
COUNTYDISTRIBUTION 4,814,035.60

POSDISTRIBUTION 702,021.40

Total ESSPayments 5,516,057.00

Legal Fees 5,000.00

Merit Resources 56,539.00

Postage and Delivery 487.50

Teleconference 479.18

Total RevolvingExpenses 5,605,533.03

Total Expense 6,050,873.70

Net Income -228,733.26

1:52 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through September 2019

Page 2
7



Jan - Sep 19

Income
BudgetedIncome

Bad Payment Fee 169.44

Event Income
ILR Conference Registration 5,850.00

Total Event Income 5,850.00

Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct.
Cost Sharing Credit -116,841.18

Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct. - Other 278,333.44

Total Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct. 161,492.26

PMTSERVICEFEE 339.52

POSSERVICEFEE 67,708.81

SERVICEFEE
ACH 452,170.49

CC 43,122.38

DDCC 959.11

DRAWDOWN 78,615.00

SERVICEFEE - Other -6.00

Total SERVICEFEE 574,860.98

Total BudgetedIncome 810,421.01

RevolvingIncome
ERECORDING

AUDITORFEE 188,675.00

TRANSFERTAX 7,900,688.00

ERECORDING - Other 4,643,863.98

Total ERECORDING 12,733,226.98

Expense Reimbursement - CLRIS 205,007.74

Fund 255 Repayment 57.50

HPPAYMENT 7,442.65

Misc. Revolving Income 482.20

POSPAYMENT 2,407,860.10

Total RevolvingIncome 15,354,077.17

Total Income 16,164,498.18

Expense
Advertising 0.00

Budgeted Expenses
Accounting

Accounting Software-Services 4,704.82

Audit 4,125.00

Bookkeeping 39,600.00

Total Accounting 48,429.82

Administrative Support 12,417.50

Business Analysis- Comm 12,540.00

EDS Credit Card Setup-Support
Local Credit Card Equipment 398.00

Total EDS Credit Card Setup-Support 398.00

Education and Outreach
ILR Annual Conference 398.70

Education and Outreach - Other 174.45

Total Education and Outreach 573.15

Insurance Expense 18,636.52

Local Maint. Expense 269,544.30

Marketing-Communications 29,356.25

1:51 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through September 2019

Page 1
8



Jan - Sep 19

Office Tech Support 4,441.08

Payment Expenses
Bank Account Analysis Fee 8,499.34

Bank Service Charges 114.68

BOA Merchant Service Charge
BOAOLN 430132313509772 Mer Acct 6,868.77

BOAOTC 430132313849862 Mer Acct 2,641.30

Total BOA Merchant Service Charge 9,510.07

Gateway Transaction Fees
EDS Online Transaction Fees 21,242.55

EDS OTC Transaction Fees 775.20

POSTransactionsFees 70,667.80

Total Gateway Transaction Fees 92,685.55

Total Payment Expenses 110,809.64

Project Management 49,550.00

Software Dev. - Programming 196,998.44

Software License-Maintenance 35,253.76

Total Budgeted Expenses 788,948.46

Depreciation Expense 39,920.49

Miscellaneous 57.46

Planned Reserve Expenses
Software Development-Consulting 25,745.00

Total Planned Reserve Expenses 25,745.00

RevolvingExpenses
Annual Audit 2,250.00

Computer Equipmnt 20,953.33

Computer Software 2,643.51

Dues and Subscriptions 2,610.26

Education and Outreach-Rev 5,975.52

ESS Committee
ESS Committee Travel 2,145.50

ESS Meeting Expenses 1,094.70

Official Publications 364.23

Total ESS Committee 3,604.43

ESSPayments
COUNTYDISTRIBUTION 12,735,921.40

PMTDISTRIBUTION 7,152.65

POSDISTRIBUTION 2,415,748.76

Total ESSPayments 15,158,822.81

Insurance 5,023.00

Legal Fees 16,000.00

Merit Resources 161,540.00

Office Supplies 226.08

Postage and Delivery 487.50

Teleconference 1,335.74

Total RevolvingExpenses 15,381,472.18

Total Expense 16,236,143.59

Net Income -71,645.41

1:51 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through September 2019

Page 2
9



Sep 30, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Bank of America

Unrestricted Reserve Account 21,170.00

Bank of America - Other 670,348.03

Total Bank of America 691,518.03

Total Checking/Savings 691,518.03

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 9,261.21

Total Accounts Receivable 9,261.21

Other Current Assets
Due from State 9,151.38

Prepaid Expenses 149,596.23

Total Other Current Assets 158,747.61

Total Current Assets 859,526.85

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation -485,069.83

Asset in Process 221,952.42

Computer Equipment 566,393.44

Total Fixed Assets 303,276.03

TOTAL ASSETS 1,162,802.88

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 33,747.14

Total Accounts Payable 33,747.14

Credit Cards
Corp-BOA Visa 2026 5,029.82

Total Credit Cards 5,029.82

Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Compensation 23,490.53

Deferred Revenues 137,670.97

DRAWDOWN 31,238.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 192,399.50

Total Current Liabilities 231,176.46

Total Liabilities 231,176.46

Equity
Retained Earnings 1,003,271.83

Net Income -71,645.41

Total Equity 931,626.42

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,162,802.88

1:54 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2019

Page 1
10



Jan - Sep 19 Budget $ Over Budget

Income
BudgetedIncome

Bad Payment Fee 169.44 180.00 -10.56

Event Income
ILR Conference Registration 5,850.00 6,000.00 -150.00

Total Event Income 5,850.00 6,000.00 -150.00

Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct. 161,492.26 166,282.70 -4,790.44

PMTSERVICEFEE 339.52

POSSERVICEFEE 67,708.81 58,260.27 9,448.54

SERVICEFEE 574,860.98 523,463.38 51,397.60

Total BudgetedIncome 810,421.01 754,186.35 56,234.66

Total Income 810,421.01 754,186.35 56,234.66

Expense
Budgeted Expenses

Accounting
Accounting Software-Services 4,704.82 4,729.92 -25.10

Bookkeeping 39,600.00 39,600.00 0.00

Total Accounting 44,304.82 44,329.92 -25.10

Administrative Support 12,417.50 11,950.00 467.50

Business Analysis- Comm 12,540.00 10,450.00 2,090.00

EDS Credit Card Setup-Support 398.00 398.00 0.00

Education and Outreach 573.15 0.00 573.15

Insurance Expense 18,636.52 21,500.00 -2,863.48

Local Maint. Expense 269,544.30 284,000.00 -14,455.70

Marketing-Communications 29,356.25 29,175.00 181.25

Office Tech Support 4,441.08 4,910.72 -469.64

Payment Expenses 110,809.64 113,708.09 -2,898.45

Project Management 49,550.00 49,250.00 300.00

Software Dev. - Programming 196,998.44 201,492.74 -4,494.30

Software License-Maintenance 35,253.76 33,301.00 1,952.76

Total Budgeted Expenses 784,823.46 804,465.47 -19,642.01

Total Expense 784,823.46 804,465.47 -19,642.01

Net Income 25,597.55 -50,279.12 75,876.67

4:42 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

11/05/19 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis January through September 2019

Page 1
11



12



13



Type Date Num Name Clr Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 1,429.01
Cleared Transactions

Charges and Cash Advances - 22 items
Credit Card Charge 08/11/2019 58728 Business Publications X -52.90 -52.90
Credit Card Charge 08/30/2019 73526... Overnight Prints X -97.77 -150.67
Credit Card Charge 08/31/2019 20028... Calltower X -113.27 -263.94
Credit Card Charge 09/03/2019 10778... Adobe Systems X -56.17 -320.11
Credit Card Charge 09/04/2019 25207 PRIA X -395.00 -715.11
Credit Card Charge 09/04/2019 28646... Amazon X -204.82 -919.93
Credit Card Charge 09/05/2019 Postmaster X -165.00 -1,084.93
Credit Card Charge 09/11/2019 10812... Adobe Systems X -52.99 -1,137.92
Credit Card Charge 09/14/2019 69703 Maytech X -90.90 -1,228.82
Credit Card Charge 09/15/2019 18880... Tenable Network Sec... X -2,321.40 -3,550.22
Credit Card Charge 09/17/2019 Postmaster X -312.00 -3,862.22
Credit Card Charge 09/19/2019 Walgreens X -57.48 -3,919.70
Credit Card Charge 09/20/2019 59604 Business Publications X -25.11 -3,944.81
Credit Card Charge 09/21/2019 P1-52... intuit X -109.98 -4,054.79
Credit Card Charge 09/22/2019 AT-84... Atlassian X -30.30 -4,085.09
Credit Card Charge 09/25/2019 INV01... Right Networks X -30.00 -4,115.09
Credit Card Charge 09/26/2019 41607... AIT X -460.30 -4,575.39
Credit Card Charge 09/26/2019 41607... AIT X -163.68 -4,739.07
Credit Card Charge 09/27/2019 92700... Walmart X -133.21 -4,872.28
Credit Card Charge 09/27/2019 07112... Dollar Tree X -67.54 -4,939.82
Credit Card Charge 09/27/2019 92700... Walmart X -25.00 -4,964.82
Credit Card Charge 09/30/2019 Bank of America X -90.00 -5,054.82

Total Charges and Cash Advances -5,054.82 -5,054.82

Payments and Credits - 2 items
Check 09/16/2019 AW91... Bank of America X 1,429.01 1,429.01
Credit Card Credit 09/27/2019 Walmart X 25.00 1,454.01

Total Cleared Transactions -3,600.81 -3,600.81

Cleared Balance 3,600.81 5,029.82

Register Balance as of 09/30/2019 3,600.81 5,029.82

New Transactions
Charges and Cash Advances - 1 item

Credit Card Charge 10/01/2019 10002... Dollar Tree -13.20 -13.20

Total Charges and Cash Advances -13.20 -13.20

Total New Transactions -13.20 -13.20

Ending Balance 3,614.01 5,043.02

1:13 PM Iowa County Recorders Association

10/04/19 Reconciliation Detail
Corp-BOA Visa 2026, Period Ending 09/30/2019

Page 1
14



Local Government Electronic Transaction Fund (0255)
9/1/19-9/30/19

Beginning Balance 688,186.33$      
Plus Receipts 54,031.70$        

Less Disbursements 58,602.90$        

Ending Balance 683,615.13$      

RECEIPTS

Recorder Fees Received 52,471.12          

Interest 1,560.58            

Total Receipts 54,031.70          

DISBURSEMENTS Invoice # Date Paid Amt Paid

Enterprise Iowa 1360, 1361 9/11 15,391.67          

Iowa County Recorders 90119 9/11 28,073.50          

Lightedge Solutions 33864 9/11 3,072.90            

CSI / Sal Johnson 25489 9/11 12,064.83          

Total Disbursements 58,602.90          

15



Sep 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Reserve Expenses Spent 5,474.25

E-Recording Fee 52,471.12

Interest 1,560.58

Total Income 59,505.95

Expense
Administration

Communications 3,487.50

Administrative Assistant 1,395.00

ESS Meetings
ESS Travel Expenses 257.79

ESS Meeting Expenses 210.86

Total ESS Meetings 468.65

Legal Fees 1,000.00

Legal Fees - Govt. Relations 500.00

Professional Fees
Oasis-Paychex 390.00

Total Professional Fees 390.00

Project Management 5,500.00

Total Administration 12,741.15

Customer Support
Account Manager 8,758.37

Total Customer Support 8,758.37

Education and Outreach
Postage 10.50

ICRA Meetings 20.00

Printed E-Sub Promo Materials 97.77

ILR Annual Conference
Conference Supplies 222.40

Total ILR Annual Conference 222.40

Misc. Color Printing 250.00

Online Educational Tools
Salesforce-Exact Target -15.72

Online Educational Tools - Other 109.16

Total Online Educational Tools 93.44

PRIA Meetings 1,374.89

Tradeshow - Meeting Exhibit
Exhibit Registration 150.00

Total Tradeshow - Meeting Exhibit 150.00

Total Education and Outreach 2,219.00

Hosting
Bandwidth 3,072.90

Software
FTP Software 90.90

Jira/Confluence 30.30

Cloud Storage 195.46

Total Software 316.66

Total Hosting 3,389.56

10:38 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis September 2019

Page 1
16



Sep 19

ILR External Develo-Programming
Redaction Services

Back File Redaction 5,474.25

Forward File Redaction 6,590.58

Total Redaction Services 12,064.83

Total ILR External Develo-Programming 12,064.83

ILR Internal Develo-Programming
Technical Lead 15,936.72

Total ILR Internal Develo-Programming 15,936.72

Office Operations
Office Space Lease 2,500.00

Teleconference 113.27

Telephone/Internet 480.00

Office Tech Support 400.00

Total Office Operations 3,493.27

Total Expense 58,602.90

Net Ordinary Income 903.05

Net Income 903.05

10:38 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis September 2019

Page 2
17



Jul - Sep 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Reserve Expenses Spent 5,474.25

E-Recording Fee 153,282.69

Interest 4,087.19

Total Income 162,844.13

Expense
Administration

Communications 10,237.50

Administrative Assistant 4,515.00

ESS Meetings
ESS Travel Expenses 257.79

ESS Meeting Expenses 210.86

Total ESS Meetings 468.65

Legal Fees 3,000.00

Legal Fees - Govt. Relations 1,500.00

Professional Fees
Oasis-Paychex 910.00

Total Professional Fees 910.00

Project Management 16,800.00

Total Administration 37,431.15

Customer Support
Account Manager 20,720.95

Total Customer Support 20,720.95

Education and Outreach
Postage 10.50

ICRA Meetings 20.00

Printed E-Sub Promo Materials 97.77

ILR Annual Conference
Conference Supplies 222.40

Total ILR Annual Conference 222.40

Misc. Color Printing 764.65

Online Educational Tools
Salesforce-Exact Target -77.10

Online Educational Tools - Other 327.48

Total Online Educational Tools 250.38

PRIA Meetings 2,367.49

PRIA Membership 625.00

Tradeshow - Meeting Exhibit
Exhibit Registration 150.00

Total Tradeshow - Meeting Exhibit 150.00

Workshops
Travel

Meal Reimbursement 24.00

Total Travel 24.00

Total Workshops 24.00

Total Education and Outreach 4,532.19

Hosting
Bandwidth 9,218.70

Domain Registration 29.76

10:38 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through September 2019

Page 1
18



Jul - Sep 19

Software
FTP Software 272.34

Jira/Confluence 90.78

Cloud Storage 976.33

Total Software 1,339.45

Total Hosting 10,587.91

ILR External Develo-Programming
Redaction Services

Back File Redaction 5,474.25

Forward File Redaction 19,184.06

Total Redaction Services 24,658.31

Total ILR External Develo-Programming 24,658.31

ILR Internal Develo-Programming
Technical Lead 37,249.50

Total ILR Internal Develo-Programming 37,249.50

Office Operations
B&W copying-printing 13.06

Office Space Lease 7,500.00

Official Publication Expense 77.35

Teleconference 454.74

Telephone/Internet 1,440.00

Office Tech Support 1,200.00

Total Office Operations 10,685.15

Total Expense 145,865.16

Net Ordinary Income 16,978.97

Net Income 16,978.97

10:38 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

10/24/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through September 2019

Page 2
19



Sep 30, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
State Treasurer

Unrestricted Operating Reserve 107,118.09

Equipment Replacement Fund 350,000.00

Restricted Operating Reserve 100,000.00

Redaction Reserve Account 32,817.78

State Treasurer - Other 93,679.26

Total State Treasurer 683,615.13

Total Checking/Savings 683,615.13

Total Current Assets 683,615.13

TOTAL ASSETS 683,615.13

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Opening Bal Equity 433,569.23

Retained Earnings 995,116.68

Reserved Retained Earnings -762,049.75

Net Income 16,978.97

Total Equity 683,615.13

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 683,615.13

10:37 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

10/24/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2019

Page 1
20



 10:39 AM

 10/24/19

 Accrual Basis

 Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through September 2019

Jul - Sep 19 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

E-Recording Fee 153,282.69 145,500.00 7,782.69

Interest 4,087.19 3,375.00 712.19

Total Income 157,369.88 148,875.00 8,494.88

Expense

Administration

Communications 10,237.50 10,250.00 -12.50

Accounting 0.00 5,750.00 -5,750.00

Administrative Assistant 4,515.00 4,100.00 415.00

ESS Meetings

ESS Travel Expenses 257.79 0.00 257.79

ESS Meeting Expenses 210.86 1,200.00 -989.14

Total ESS Meetings 468.65 1,200.00 -731.35

Legal Fees 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00

Legal Fees - Govt. Relations 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00

Professional Fees

Oasis-Paychex 910.00 910.00 0.00

Total Professional Fees 910.00 910.00 0.00

Project Management 16,800.00 16,500.00 300.00

Total Administration 37,431.15 43,210.00 -5,778.85

Customer Support

Account Manager 20,720.95 21,400.00 -679.05

Total Customer Support 20,720.95 21,400.00 -679.05

Education and Outreach 4,532.19 7,170.00 -2,637.81

Hosting

Bandwidth 9,218.70 9,225.00 -6.30

Domain Registration 29.76 40.00 -10.24

Software

FTP Software 272.34 285.00 -12.66

Jira/Confluence 90.78 105.00 -14.22

Cloud Storage 976.33 1,500.00 -523.67

Total Software 1,339.45 1,890.00 -550.55

Total Hosting 10,587.91 11,155.00 -567.09

ILR External Develo-Programming

Redaction Services

Forward File Redaction 19,184.06 17,250.00 1,934.06

Total Redaction Services 19,184.06 17,250.00 1,934.06

Total ILR External Develo-Programming 19,184.06 17,250.00 1,934.06

ILR Internal Develo-Programming

Technical Lead 37,249.50 38,900.00 -1,650.50

Total ILR Internal Develo-Programming 37,249.50 38,900.00 -1,650.50

Office Operations

B&W copying-printing 13.06 150.00 -136.94

 Page 1 of 2
21



 10:39 AM

 10/24/19

 Accrual Basis

 Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through September 2019

Jul - Sep 19 Budget $ Over Budget

Office Space Lease 7,500.00 7,500.00 0.00

Office Supplies 0.00 75.00 -75.00

Official Publication Expense 77.35 120.00 -42.65

Postage 0.00 55.00 -55.00

Teleconference 454.74 750.00 -295.26

Telephone/Internet 1,440.00 1,440.00 0.00

Office Tech Support 1,200.00 1,725.00 -525.00

Total Office Operations 10,685.15 11,815.00 -1,129.85

Total Expense 140,390.91 150,900.00 -10,509.09

Net Ordinary Income 16,978.97 -2,025.00 19,003.97

Net Income 16,978.97 -2,025.00 19,003.97

 Page 2 of 2
22



1

phil@clris.com

From: McLaughlin, Randi [TOS] <Randi.McLaughlin@tos.iowa.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2019 8:53 AM
To: phil@clris.com
Cc: Austin, Karen [TOS]
Subject: RE: Pending Budget Action

Phil:  After reviewing the Iowa Code and speaking with staff from the State Auditor’s Office, we believe the method of 
budget preparation for ILR/ESS is a decision to be made by you and the governing board of the County Recorders’ 
Association.   
 
In regard to receiving one reimbursement invoice per month, we are in agreement with this proposal as it appears to be 
a simpler process. We do request that the authorization to pay this single invoice come directly from the email account 
of one of the governing board members, certifying that the board has approved payment from fund 255, as required by 
Iowa Code.  We will also put this language in an updated agreement with them.   
 
We appreciate the time spent and effort you have made to explain your office, its duties, and the service the ESS 
provides to the counties and citizens of Iowa.  
 

Randi McLaughlin | Deputy Treasurer 
Treasurer of State ▪ State Capitol Building   
1007 E Grand Ave 1st Floor ▪ Des Moines, Iowa 50319 
[p] 515.281.6093 ▪ [w] IowaTreasurer.gov  
 

From: phil@clris.com [mailto:phil@clris.com]  
Sent: Monday, November 04, 2019 12:52 PM 
To: 'Lesley.Geary@AOS.IOWA.GOV'; 'John.McCormally@AOS.IOWA.GOV'; 'Tammy.Hollingsworth@AOS.IOWA.GOV'; 
McLaughlin, Randi [TOS]; Austin, Karen [TOS]; Morano, Sherri [TOS] 
Cc: 'Travis Case'; 'Gary Wilgenbusch'; Lisa Long 
Subject: RE: Pending Budget Action 
 
All, 
Just a quick reminder that our governing Board will be meeting this Thursday, and part of their action will be to review 
and approve the budget for CY 2020. We are preparing to move forward with the changes we have previously described, 
but it is not yet too late to make some adjustments.  If you have any guidance to share, please do so ‐ if you can ‐ by 
close of business on Tuesday, November 5.  Otherwise we’ll report back to you on the actions taken. 
 
If any of you would like to attend this meeting, the details are included in the attached agenda. Budget documents are 
not yet available as we are still making some updates. That information should be ready by tomorrow morning. 
 
Financial matters are early in the agenda, and are usually completed by NOON. This is not required, but RSVP if you can. 
 
Have a great week! 
 
Phil 
 

From: phil@clris.com  
Sent: Monday, October 28, 2019 4:15 PM 
To: 'Lesley.Geary@AOS.IOWA.GOV' <Lesley.Geary@AOS.IOWA.GOV>; 'John.McCormally@AOS.IOWA.GOV' 

23



2

<John.McCormally@AOS.IOWA.GOV>; 'Tammy.Hollingsworth@AOS.IOWA.GOV' 
<Tammy.Hollingsworth@AOS.IOWA.GOV>; 'Randi.McLaughlin@tos.iowa.gov' <Randi.McLaughlin@tos.iowa.gov>; 
'karen.austin@tos.iowa.gov' <karen.austin@tos.iowa.gov>; 'Sherri.Morano@tos.iowa.gov' 
<Sherri.Morano@tos.iowa.gov> 
Cc: 'Travis Case' <travis.case@gccourthouse.org>; 'Gary Wilgenbusch' <gary.wilgenbusch@berganKDV.com>; Lisa Long 
<llong@clris.com> 
Subject: Pending Budget Action 
 
All, 
I hope your week is off to a great start.  Our next governing board meeting will be held on November 7, 2019 at our 
offices here in Johnston. Of course any of you are welcome to attend. RSVP if you can. 
 
We are in the final stages of preparing the calendar year 2020 budget together. It is our intent to move forward with a 
recommendation to the governing board to establish a consolidated budget within the framework of the Bank of 
America Treasury Management Fund, as described in the previous email. See below. If you have any questions or 
concerns about this intended action, please let me know as soon as possible.  We do believe that managing the project 
through a single budget will be easier for everyone to understand, and it will ensure that all transactions will be included 
in our annual private audit. 
 
And if you have any suggestions or recommendations for improving our processes please forward them so that we can 
share with our governing board. Thanks very much. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Phil 
 
 
Phil Dunshee, PMP, MPA 
Project Manager 
Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, IA 50131 
515.491.8939 
phil@clris.com 
 
 
 

From: phil@clris.com  
Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2019 4:22 PM 
Subject: Thanks and next steps 
 
All, 
 
I want thank you for being generous with your time and allowing us to provide you with background information about 
Iowa Land Records and the Electronic Services System 28E organization.  There are a lot of moving parts, and as we 
noted ‐ the ESS is not your typical 28E organization. We know this has been lot to digest, so please take some time to 
consider all of the information we shared and send us whatever questions you may have. 
 
There are a few items that would be good to resolve by the end of October if possible, as we are making preparations to 
consider the 2020 calendar year budget at the November 7, 2019 meeting of our governing board. In summary: 
 

24



3

1. We are considering a change which would have ILR/ESS pay all vendor and project expenses through the Bank of 
America Treasury Management fund effective January 1, 2020.  The TOS office would receive only one request 
for payment each month in the form of a reimbursement invoice. We believe this could simplify processes for 
the TOS, and it would ensure that all transactions would be included in the private audit of the BOA Treasury 
Management Account. 

2. We are considering steps to consolidate our budget processes through the BOA Treasury Management Account, 
instead of having two separate budgets – one associated with Fund 255 and one associated with the BOA 
account. The attached illustration shows that reimbursements would continue to be processed through Fund 
255, but the expenses would be managed through a single budget under the BOA TM umbrella. This might also 
be effective January 1, 2020. 

 
We’re sure that you will want to compare notes on these topics. Do you have any questions or concerns about these 
actions, or is there any reason not to proceed assuming that our governing boards approve?  
 
Generally, we would welcome further dialogue and suggestions for improving our processes. We have found our private 
audit activities to be constructive and the basis for continuous improvement, and your insights can provide those same 
benefits. 
 
Again, thanks for your time and we look forward to the next conversation. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Phil 
 
 
Phil Dunshee, PMP, MPA 
Project Manager 
Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, IA 50131 
515.491.8939 
phil@clris.com 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Calendar Year 2019 

BOA Budget

2nd Amendment

11.07.19
2019

January February March April May June July August September October November December Actual
Amended & 
Adopted 5.9.19 Difference

Income E-Recording Fee $53,474.89 $44,684.19 $52,361.93 $65,415.37 $66,341.30 $66,903.38 $74,569.06 $78,701.05 $72,409.81 $83,370.08 $61,500.00 $61,500.00 $781,231.06 $707,963.38 $73,267.68

POS $5,227.61 $4,335.73 $6,698.90 $11,992.84 $10,516.55 $8,830.24 $8,845.09 $6,150.62 $5,450.75 $5,414.69 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $84,463.02 $76,260.27 $8,202.75

Bad Payment Fee $0.00 $0.00 $30.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19.44 $30.00 $60.00 $30.00 $0.00 $30.00 $30.00 $229.44 $270.00 ($40.56)

Credit Card Set Up $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Local Service Provider Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,782.70 $159,709.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $161,492.26 $166,282.70 ($4,790.44)

Conference Registration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $525.00 $1,725.00 $3,600.00 $225.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,075.00 $6,000.00 $75.00

Conference Sponsorship $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $750.00

Total Income $58,702.50 $49,019.92 $59,090.83 $79,190.91 $236,567.41 $75,753.06 $83,969.15 $86,636.67 $81,490.56 $89,759.77 $67,030.00 $67,030.00 $1,034,240.78 $956,776.35 $77,464.43

Expense

Accounting $3,584.98 $139.98 $139.98 $139.98 $139.98 $139.98 $139.98 $139.98 $139.98 $139.98 $145.00 $145.00 $5,134.80 $5,164.92 ($30.12)

Bookkeeping $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $52,800.00 $52,800.00 $0.00

Audit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $625.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,125.00 $0.00 $4,125.00

Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,636.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,636.52 $21,500.00 ($2,863.48)

Admin Asst. $1,360.00 $1,410.00 $1,090.00 $1,340.00 $1,500.00 $1,300.00 $840.00 $2,250.00 $1,327.50 $742.50 $1,327.50 $1,325.00 $15,812.50 $15,925.00 ($112.50)

Business Analysis & QA $2,090.00 $2,090.00 $2,090.00 $2,090.00 $2,090.00 $2,090.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,540.00 $10,450.00 $2,090.00

Project Management $5,250.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $6,000.00 $5,300.00 $5,500.00 $6,100.00 $5,500.00 $5,100.00 $66,250.00 $65,750.00 $500.00

Communications $3,262.50 $3,243.75 $2,737.50 $3,581.25 $3,243.75 $3,243.75 $3,262.50 $3,487.50 $3,293.75 $2,964.38 $3,293.75 $3,300.00 $38,914.38 $39,075.00 ($160.62)

Education & Outreach $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $372.40 $200.75 $5,132.02 $0.00 $0.00 $5,705.17 $6,000.00 ($294.83)

LLRMS Maintenance Cost Sharing $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $269,024.58 $259.86 $259.86 $259.86 $4,000.00 $259.86 $274,064.02 $284,000.00 ($9,935.98)

CC Equipment Refresh $199.00 $199.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $398.00 $398.00 $0.00

Software-License-Maintenance $39.00 $1,595.00 $9,289.00 $39.00 $7,043.00 $14,744.01 $39.00 $144.35 $2,321.40 $0.00 $5,800.00 $7,000.00 $48,053.76 $33,418.00 $14,635.76

Software-System Development $20,743.84 $20,604.62 $28,800.13 $20,344.15 $20,185.30 $20,206.30 $20,119.00 $28,869.67 $17,125.43 $29,724.30 $20,500.00 $20,500.00 $267,722.74 $262,992.74 $4,730.00

Office Tech Support $540.18 $540.18 $540.18 $540.18 $540.18 $540.18 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $5,641.08 $6,560.72 ($919.64)

Payment Fees $13,042.00 $11,618.14 $10,967.29 $13,080.66 $12,570.45 $16,827.23 $11,654.47 $11,393.54 $9,655.86 $9,424.48 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $146,234.12 $152,708.09 ($6,473.97)

Total Expense $54,511.50 $51,340.67 $65,554.08 $51,055.22 $79,349.18 $68,991.45 $315,879.53 $57,642.30 $44,624.53 $59,287.52 $58,366.25 $55,429.86 $962,032.09 $956,742.47 $5,289.62

Balance $4,191.00 ($2,320.75) ($6,463.25) $28,135.69 $157,218.23 $6,761.61 ($231,910.38) $28,994.37 $36,866.03 $30,472.25 $8,663.75 $11,600.14 $72,208.69 $33.88 $72,174.81

Proposed 11.07.19 26



Fund 255
ILR FY 2020 Project Budget

Proposed Amendment - 11.7.19

2019

July August September October November December Actual
Adopted FY 2020 
YTD Budget Difference

Income E-Recording Fee 54,102.35 46,709.22 52,471.12 59,419.17 48,500.00 48,500.00 $309,701.86 $291,000.00 $18,701.86
Interest 1,201.99 1,324.62 1,560.58 1,252.22 1,125.00 1,125.00 $7,589.41 $6,750.00 $839.41

Total Income $55,304.34 48,033.84 54,031.70 60,671.39 49,625.00 49,625.00 $317,291.27 $297,750.00 $19,541.27
Expense

Administration
Accounting $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,250.00 $6,375.00 ($4,125.00)

Admin. Asst. $870.00 $2,250.00 $1,395.00 $720.00 $1,620.00 $1,400.00 $8,255.00 $8,300.00 ($45.00)
Miscellaneous $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Computer Equipment 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Computer Software $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ESS Meetings $0.00 $0.00 $468.65 $0.00 $137.12 $1,200.00 $1,805.77 $2,400.00 ($594.23)

Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Legal Fees $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00

Government Relations $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

Oasis-Paychex $260.00 $260.00 $390.00 $260.00 $260.00 $260.00 $1,690.00 $1,690.00 $0.00

Project Management $6,000.00 $5,300.00 $5,500.00 $6,100.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $33,900.00 $33,000.00 $900.00

Communications $3,262.50 $3,487.50 $3,487.50 $2,945.00 $4,030.00 $3,500.00 $20,712.50 $20,750.00 ($37.50)

Business Analyst $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Administration

Customer Support

Computer Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Computer Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Remote Customer Service Representative $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Account-Customer Service-QA Manager $6,014.44 $5,948.14 $8,758.37 $6,115.60 $6,110.28 $6,200.00 $39,146.83 $40,000.00 ($853.17)

Total Customer Support

Education and Outreach $370.60 $1,942.59 $2,219.00 $808.92 $4,785.00 $1,000.00 $11,126.11 $23,375.00 ($12,248.89)

Proposed 11.7.19
Note: Reflects First Six Months Budget V. Actuals Only

Effective January 1, 2020 - Budget Consolidated in BOA Treasury Management Account Page 1
27



Fund 255
ILR FY 2020 Project Budget

Proposed Amendment - 11.7.19
2019

July August September October November December Actual
Adopted FY 2020 
YTD Budget Difference

Hosting

Bandwidth 3,072.90 3,072.90 3,072.90 3,072.90 3,072.90 3,075.00 $18,439.50 $18,450.00 ($10.50)

Digital Certificate 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Domain Registration $0.00 $29.76 $0.00 $623.98 0.00 $0.00 $653.74 $40.00 $613.74

Software/Service

DB 2 Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

FTP Software $90.72 $90.72 $90.90 $90.90 $90.90 $95.00 $549.14 $570.00 ($20.86)

JIRA/Confluence $30.24 $30.24 $30.30 $30.30 $30.30 $35.00 $186.38 $210.00 ($23.62)

SLES Enterprise $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

VMWare $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Web Monitoring $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cloud Storage $491.95 $288.92 $195.46 $204.82 $215.83 $750.00 $2,146.98 $3,500.00 ($1,353.02)

GeoIP database $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

City State Zip data $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Alien Vault $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DB Visualizer $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Accusoft $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Nessus $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Jet Brains $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Hosting

Proposed 11.7.19
Note: Reflects First Six Months Budget V. Actuals Only

Effective January 1, 2020 - Budget Consolidated in BOA Treasury Management Account Page 2
28



Fund 255
ILR FY 2020 Project Budget

Proposed Amendment - 11.7.19
2019

July August September October November December Actual
Adopted FY 2020 
YTD Budget Difference

ILR External Develo-Programming

Redaction Services $5,616.08 $6,977.40 $6,590.58 $6,397.93 $7,314.53 $7,500.00 $40,396.52 $34,500.00 $5,896.52

Software-System Development $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SysAdmn-DB Support $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total ILR External Develo-Programming

ILR Internal Develo-Programming

Computer Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Developer $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Integration Coordinator $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Developer Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Technical Lead $10,659.68 $10,653.10 $15,936.72 $10,852.46 $10,852.92 $11,200.00 $70,154.88 $72,500.00 ($2,345.12)

Training $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total ILR Internal Develo-Programming

Local Software Dev. and Maint. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Office Operations

B/W Photocopy 13.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 $63.06 $300.00 ($236.94)

Office Computer Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Office Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Office Space Lease $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00

Office Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $95.37 $0.00 $95.37 $150.00 ($54.63)

Official Publication Expense $24.45 $52.90 $0.00 $25.11 $44.86 $40.00 $187.32 $240.00 ($52.68)

Parking $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3.00 $0.00 $3.00 $0.00 $3.00

Postage $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $110.00 ($110.00)

Teleconference $216.37 $125.10 $113.27 $124.11 $91.60 $250.00 $920.45 $1,500.00 ($579.55)

Telephone/Internet 480.00 480.00 480.00 480.00 480.00 480.00 $2,880.00 $2,880.00 $0.00

Office Tech Support 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 $2,400.00 $3,450.00 ($1,050.00)

Miscellaneous Credit Adjustment

Total Office Operations

Total Expense $41,872.99 $45,389.27 $53,128.65 $45,502.03 $49,134.61 $46,935.00 $281,962.55 $298,290.00 ($16,327.45)

Balance

$13,431.35 $2,644.57 $903.05 $15,169.36 $490.39 $2,690.00 $35,328.72 ($540.00) $35,868.72

Proposed 11.7.19
Note: Reflects First Six Months Budget V. Actuals Only

Effective January 1, 2020 - Budget Consolidated in BOA Treasury Management Account Page 3
29



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
   8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 
 
 
 
November 7, 2019 
 
 
 
To: ESS Coordinating Committee 
 ESS Finance Subcommittee 

 
 
From: Phil Dunshee, ILR Project Manager 
 
Re: Bank of America Treasury Management Account 
 
In recent months ESS staff and executive leadership have communicated with senior executives in the 
Office of the State Treasurer and the Office of State Auditor to brief them on the Electronic Services 
System and Iowa Land Records. Both offices have new leadership and team members, and with just a 
few exceptions the offices have little institutional memory about ESS and ILR. We proactively sought 
audiences with key staff in those offices to provide them with an overview of the history and financial 
management of ESS and ILR. The meetings were constructive, and we believe new channels of 
communication have been established with both offices. 
 
During the meeting we advised them of some pending changes in the ESS budget structure and billing 
methods. Subsequent communications with the offices indicate that they have reviewed the changes. The 
position they have taken is that “the method of budget preparation for ILR/ESS is a decision to be made 
by you [ESS] and the governing board of the County Recorders’ Association.” They have also endorsed 
the proposal to submit one invoice per month for reimbursement. These proposed actions are 
incorporated in the budget recommendations now before you. 
 
Our intent is to continue to communicate with them. One topic that came up in the discussion with the 
Auditor’s staff is the unusual nature of a 28E organization being managed by a non-profit organization. 
Specifically, it was noted that the 28E organization was being audited annually AND a 990 return was 
also being filed. Technically, government organizations are not required to file a 990 return. 
 
As you know, in recent years we have taken some procedural steps to clarify the status of the Electronic 
Services System as a governmental 28E organization. For example, in past years the Association served 
as the contracting entity for work performed by outside vendors. Based on the advice of our legal counsel, 
all contracts are now originated by ESS. But there are several areas where the Association is the named 
party. This includes the Bank of America Treasury Management account. In discussions with our CPA 
firm (Bergan KDV) and our private auditor (Denman), the possible transition of banking activities to ESS 
has been reviewed. 
 
Because we are now in the process of consolidating ESS budget activities through the Bank of America 
account, this may be the right time to change the account to be associated with ESS rather than ICRA. 
We believe this could become effective on January 1, 2020 – subject to your consent. 
 
Please be assured that this change would not diminish the role of the Association as the controlling entity 
for the Electronic Services System as defined in the 28E agreement itself. The change would have the 
following effects. 

 The operating financial transactions would be labeled as either ESS or the Electronic Services 
System. For example, when checks are written they would be associated with ESS and not ICRA. 

 There would no longer be a need for our CPA to prepare a combined financial statement. 
 It is likely that there would no longer be a need to prepare and file a 990 return with the IRS 

(beginning in 2021 for the 2020 calendar year) 
 There could be a reduction in the liability exposure for the Association. This would need to be 

reviewed with our insurance broker and underwriters. 

30



 
 
I believe this would be a prudent course of action, and one which would be help clarify roles for the State 
Auditor, Treasurer of State, our vendors and others. Your consideration is respectfully requested. If you 
approve, the following motion would be in order. 
 
 
“I move that the ILR/ESS staff take steps to establish a new treasury management account for ESS 
operations to be effective January 1, 2020 or as soon as practicable thereafter.” 
 
 
Thank you. We look forward to the discussion. 
 
pd 
 
 

31



Local Service Provider Agreement Renewal

 Social Security Cost-of-Living adjustment for 2020

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 

   
  

  

 

3408 WOODLA ND A V.   SUITE 210    WEST DES  MOINES I OWA  50266      PH :   515.314.9462  

THE RAFFERTY GROUP 

 

 

 

     November 4, 2019 

 

 

VIA E-MAIL:   

 

Mr. Phil Dunshee 

Iowa County Recorders Association 

8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa 50131 

 

Re: 2019 Legislative Engagement – Electronic Services System 

 

Dear Phil, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal for government relation services 

for Iowa Land Records – the Electronic Services System - for the 2020 calendar years.   

This letter outlines the scope, compensation and other terms of the proposal.    

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The engagement will consist of representing the Electronic Services System before the 

executive and legislative branches of Iowa state government for the 2020 calendar 

years.   The engagement will consist of the following: 

 

• Monitor all bills, study bills, amendments and other legislative activities relating to 

or having a potential impact on Iowa Land Records, in particular real estate 

transactions and the recording of such transactions.  

• Facilitate ongoing communications and strengthen relationships with policymakers 

concerning Iowa Land Records and the Electronic Services System. 

• Assist with facilitating communications and strengthen relationships with various 

stakeholders and associations, as well as executive or judicial branch offices as 

appropriate. 

• Set up and participate in briefings with key legislators and legislative leaders. 

• Actively communicate and coordinate with legislative liaisons for the Iowa County 

Recorders Association during the legislative session.  

 

Regular communication, as deemed appropriate, will occur to keep the project manager 

for ESS informed on the above scope of work.    

  

48



 

 

 

COMPENSATION 

The cost for support during the 2020 calendar years shall be $8,000 plus expenses not to 

exceed $500 per year.   The amount will be invoiced monthly at $1,000 a month from 

January through April, and $500 per month from May through December, to be invoiced 

by the 10th of the following month.  Expenses will also be billed monthly.   

 

If there is a decision to pursue proactive legislation, then the amount of support will be 

negotiated, and this agreement will be modified. 

 

If the foregoing terms and conditions of our representation meet the Electronic Service 

System’s needs and expectations, please indicate your acceptance by executing this letter 

in the space provided below and return it to our office. 

 

Please let us know if you have any questions, need additional information, or if we need to 

modify the proposal. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

      Robert L. Rafferty 

 
 

  

 

Read and agreed to this ____ day of _________________, 2019. 

      ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 

 

      _____________________________ 

      By:  Phil Dunshee,  

      Its: Project Manager 

      

  

49



2020 ESS Calendar 

 

*In person meeting 

 

ESS Coordinating Committee (Quarterly) 

*February 6 th @ 10:00 AM 

*May 7 th @ 10:00 AM 

*August 6 th @ 10:00 AM 

*November 5th @ 10:00 AM 

 

ESS Finance Subcommittee (Monthly) 

January 3rd @ 8:30 AM 

February 4th @ 8:30 AM 

March 5th @ 8:30 AM 

*April 3rd @ 8:30 AM 

May 5th @ 8:30 AM 

June 4th @ 8:30 AM 

July 3rd @8:30 AM 

August 4th @ 8:30 AM 

September 3rd @ 8:30 AM 

October 6th @ 8:30 AM 

November 3rd @ 8:30 AM 

December 3rd @ 8:30 AM 

January 5th @ 8:30 AM 

 

ESS Standards Subcommittee (Quarterly) 

January 14th 

*April 14th 

July 14th 

October 13th 

 

 

 

DR
AF
T

50



2020 ESS Calendar 

*In person meeting

ESS Marketing/Communications Subcommittee 

January 23th @ 10:00 AM 

March 12th  @ 10:00 AM 

September 17th @ 10 AM 

November 19th @ 10 AM 

Local Service Provider Calls (Quarterly) 

January 23 @ 2:00 PM (previous week is MISMO) 

April 14 @ 2:00 PM 

July 16 @ 2:00 PM 

October 13 @ 2:00 PM 

ILR Conference 

October, 2020 Date To Be Determined (May be in conjunction with ICRA conference) 

ILR Deputies Conference ‐ Proposed 

September, 2020 Date To Be Determined 

ICRA District Meetings 

Dates and Locations reported by District Officers 

ISAC 

Spring Conference – March 12‐13 

Annual Conference – August 25‐27 

PRIA 

Winter Symposium (Austin, TX) – February 24‐27 

Annual Conference (Milwaukee, WI) – August 17‐20  

DR
AF
T

51



Updated 092319 

 

Chapter 10 
ESS Online Payment Security Policies 

 
 

ESS – 10.1 Definitions.   
(Iowa Code Section 331.604) 

 
As used in this Chapter: 
 
Acquirer – Also referred to as “merchant bank,” “acquiring bank,” or “acquiring 
financial institution”. Entity, typically a financial institution, that processes 
payment card transactions for merchants and is defined by a payment brand as an 
acquirer. Acquirers are subject to payment brand rules and procedures regarding 
merchant compliance. 
 
Audit Log – Also referred to as “audit trail.” Chronological record of system 
activities. Provides an independently verifiable trail sufficient to permit 
reconstruction, review, and examination of sequence of environments and 
activities surrounding or leading to operation, procedure, or event in a transaction 
from inception to final results. 
 
Cardholder Data - At a minimum, cardholder data consists of the full PAN. 
Cardholder data may also appear in the form of the full PAN plus any of the 
following: cardholder name, expiration date and/or service code See Sensitive 
Authentication Data for additional data elements that may be transmitted or 
processed (but not stored) as part of a payment transaction. 
 
CDE – Acronym for “cardholder data environment.” The people, processes and 
technology that store, process, or transmit cardholder data or sensitive 
authentication data. 
 
Encryption – Process of converting information into an unintelligible form except 
to holders of a specific cryptographic key. Use of encryption protects information 
between the encryption process and the decryption process (the inverse of 
encryption) against unauthorized disclosure. 
 
ESS E-Submission – the electronic filing and recording service developed and 
maintained by the Electronic Services System, a.k.a. Iowa Land Records. The 
ESS E-Submission service processes customer payments on behalf of Iowa 
counties. 
 
ESS Payment – the application developed and maintained by ESS to receive, 
transmit or temporarily store any customer payment information. 
 
Multi-Factor Authentication – Method of authenticating a user whereby at least 
two factors are verified. These factors include something the user has (such as a 
smart card or dongle), something the user knows (such as a password, passphrase, 

DR
AF
T

52



Updated 092319 

or PIN) or something the user is or does (such as fingerprints, other forms of 
biometrics, etc.). 

Non-Console Access – Refers to logical access to a system component that occurs 
over a network interface rather than via a direct, physical connection to the system 
component. Non-console access includes access from within local/internal 
networks as well as access from external, or remote, networks. 

PA-DSS – The then-current version of the Payment Card Industry (PCI) Payment 
Application Data Security Standard Requirements and Security Assessment 
Procedures, as from time to time amended and made available on the Website. 

PAN - Acronym for “primary account number” and also referred to as “account 
number.” Unique payment card number (typically for credit or debit cards) that 
identifies the issuer and the particular cardholder account. 

Payment Application – A software application that stores, processes, or transmits 
cardholder data or other payment information as part of authorization or 
settlement. 

Payment Gateway – Sometimes referred to as “Payment Processor” or “payment 
service provider (PSP)”. Entity engaged by a merchant or other entity to handle 
payment card transactions on their behalf. While payment processors typically 
provide acquiring services, payment processors are not considered acquirers 
unless defined as such by a payment card brand. See also Acquirer. 

PCI DSS – Acronym for “Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard.” 

PCI DSS Glossary – A list of terms defined by PCI SSC published at 
https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org/pci_security/glossary 

PCI SSC – PCI Security Standards Council, LLC 

Penetration Test – Penetration tests attempt to identify ways to exploit 
vulnerabilities to circumvent or defeat the security features of system 
components. Penetration testing includes network and application testing as well 
as controls and processes around the networks and applications, and occurs from 
both outside the environment (external testing) and from inside the environment. 

Personal Firewall Software – A software firewall product installed on a single 
computer. 

Public Network - Network established and operated by a third-party 
telecommunications provider for specific purpose of providing data transmission 
services for the public. Data over public networks can be intercepted, modified, 

DR
AF
T

53



Updated 092319 

 

and/or diverted while in transit. Examples of public networks include, but are not 
limited to, the Internet, wireless, and mobile technologies. 
 
SAQ Acronym for “Self-Assessment Questionnaire.” Reporting tool used to 
document self-assessment results from an entity’s PCI DSS assessment. This 
includes Self Assessment Questionnaire – B and B-IP for merchants using 
payment terminal devices and Self Assessment Questionnaire – D for merchant 
which receive and process customer PAN (primary account number and related 
data) through a Payment Application. 
 
VPN - Acronym for “virtual private network.” A computer network in which 
some of connections are virtual circuits within some larger network, such as the 
Internet, instead of direct connections by physical wires. The end points of the 
virtual network are said to be tunneled through the larger network when this is the 
case. While a common application consists of secure communications through the 
public Internet, a VPN may or may not have strong security features such as 
authentication or content encryption. A VPN may be used with a token, smart 
card, etc., to provide two-factor authentication. 

 
ESS – 10.2 Authority and Purpose. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604) 

 
10.2(1) The Electronic Services System has the responsibility to develop, 
implement, and maintain a statewide internet website for purposes of providing 
electronic access to records and information and to implement electronic 
recording and electronic transactions in each County.  Various functions of the 
Electronic Services System require the operation of a system for accepting 
payment for various services including the electronic filing of documents. The 
operation of a payment system requires that certain security standards be 
implemented to protect the private information of ESS customers including 
cardholder data. The purpose of this Chapter is to set forth the core security 
policies to be implemented by Electronic Services System 
 
 
 
 
ESS – 10.3 ESS Staff Security Responsibilities. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604) 

 
10.3(1) Chief Security Officer.  The ESS Technical Lead position on the ESS 
table of organization shall serve as the ESS Chief Security Officer (CSO). The 
CSO shall have the following duties and responsibilities: 
 

a. Configuring and maintaining a secure network for the operation of the E-
Submission Service and the ESS payment application 

b. Ensuring that any customer payment information, including a primary 
account number, an expiration date, or customer verification number 

DR
AF
T

54



Updated 092319 

 

which is communicated through the E-Submission Service, the ESS 
payment application or any other application is securely encrypted 

c. Configuring and maintaining the E-Submission Service, the ESS payment 
application, and any other application which includes a function for 
receiving payment in a form which minimizes the storage of any customer 
payment information in any ESS system 

d. Providing for the timely application of security patches for any software 
operating on ESS systems, and updating or replacing software which is 
has been deprecated or is no longer supported by the software publisher 

e. Ensuring that vendor supplied defaults for system passwords are replaced 
with unique passwords or elements which are unique to ESS 

f. Ensuring that all devices associated with application production, staging, 
testing, development and maintenance are kept up-to-date with the most 
recent patches and updates to operating system software and other critical 
applications 

g. Maintaining and monitoring the operation of anti-virus software for ESS 
systems and devices associated with development activities 

h. Maintaining a risk ranking system for newly discovered vulnerabilities 
i. Implementing appropriate access control measures for systems or 

equipment which may contain any customer payment information 
j. Ensuring that each authorized ESS system user who may have access to 

customer payment information has a unique ID and password or pass 
phrase coupled with an appropriate authentication method 

k. Maintaining physical control of equipment and media which may contain 
cardholder data and other customer payment information, and providing 
for the destruction of equipment or media when taken out of service 

l. Maintaining appropriate system activity logs and processes for monitoring 
access to system which may contain customer payment information. 

m. Providing for periodic vulnerability testing and scanning of ESS systems 
and applications 

n. Acting as the custodian of any cryptographic key when applicable 
o. Ensuring that the other security standards and requirements specified in 

this Chapter are fulfilled 
p. Responding to all security alerts on a 24/7 basis 
q. Implementing the periodic tasks specified in an ESS Security Checklist 

 
10.3(2) Account and Customer Support Personnel.  All ESS personnel, including 
ESS employees or contractors, who are engaged in customer service, account 
management or financial accounting activities and who have access to 
applications with customer payment information shall have the following duties 
and responsibilities: 
 

a. Logging in to applications which may provide access to customer payment 
information with a unique user identification and password or pass phrase 
provided by the Chief Security Officer. Applications include ESS E-
Submission, ESS Payment, and USAePay Payment Gateway reports 

DR
AF
T

55



Updated 092319 

 

b. Assisting ESS customers with specific payment issues which may include 
but not be limited to voiding transactions, issuing refunds, producing 
payment reports, providing advice and assistance to customers regarding 
transactions. 

 
10.3(3) Prohibited Activities.  All ESS personnel, including the Chief Security 
Officer, and ESS employees or contractors, who are engaged in customer service, 
account management or financial accounting activities are prohibited from the 
following activities: 
 

a. Accessing or viewing customer payment information including cardholder 
data for any purpose other than the business tasks associated with payment 
for ESS services 

b. Accessing ESS applications or information with any mobile device 
c. Accessing ESS applications with any external or personally owned 

computers or other devices which are not maintained or managed by ESS 
d. Accessing ESS applications through any unsecured wireless access point 

except through an ESS virtual private network (VPN) 
e. Accessing ESS applications using a user ID and password assigned to a 

customer or another ESS user 
f. Directly assisting an ESS customer with the creation or maintenance of 

account information by entering information 
g. Disclosing or publishing any information about keys used for the 

encryption of cardholder data 
h. Storing sensitive authentication data such as a primary account number 

(PAN), cardholder name, service code, expiration date, magnetic stripe 
data, CV data, or PIN data 

 
10.3(4) Authorized Activities.  All systems and applications which may provide 
access to customer payment information shall conform to the following 
requirements: 
 

a. Authorized customers may view their full account information when 
creating or updating their account 

b. All ESS personnel may view card expiration date information solely for 
the purposes of communicating with authorized customers about card 
renewal processes 

c. Cardholder data, including a primary account number (PAN), cardholder 
name, service code or expiration date may be transmitted through the ESS 
system to the designated external payment processor for storage. Any 
cardholder data shall be encrypted during transmission 

 
10.3(5) Risk Mitigation. Based on any review of compliance with PCI DSS 
requirements, the ESS CSO and Project Manager or Administrator shall develop 
and implement a risk mitigation and migration plan. Members of the ESS 

DR
AF
T

56



Updated 092319 

 

Executive Committee shall be confidentially informed of any known risks and 
planned mitigation activities. 
 
Documentation of information relating to the PCI SSC requirements shall be 
securely maintained by ESS personnel. 
 
ESS – 10.4 ESS Payment Security Standards 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604) 

 
The following standards for ESS network and systems which receive, transmit or 
temporarily store customer payment information shall be implemented. Where 
appropriate, cross references to nationally established security policies and best 
practices shall be cited. PCI SAQ 12.1 
 
10.4(1) Network and Systems.  Activities to build and maintain a secure network 
and systems shall conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. All network connections including firewall, routers and switches shall be 
configured to protect cardholder information.  All network connections 
shall be inspected and tested not less than annually. PCI SAQ 1.1.1 

b. A network diagram which documents connections with the cardholder 
data environment, and a diagram documenting all cardholder data flows 
across systems and networks shall be maintained and updated not less than 
annually. PCI SAQ 1.1.2.b and PCI SAQ 1.1.3.b 

c. Documentation of groups, roles and responsibilities of network 
components, and documentation for the services, protocols, and ports shall 
be maintained and updated not less than annually. PCI SAQ 1.1.5 and PCI 
SAQ 1.1.6.a, b  

d. Firewall and router configuration standards and rule sets shall be reviewed 
at least every six months. PCI SAQ 1.1.7.b 

e. Direct public access between the Internet and any ESS system component 
in the cardholder date environment is prohibited. PCI SAQ 1.3 

f. Personal firewall software shall be installed and active on any portable 
computing device which is used to access the cardholder data 
environment. The firewall software shall be configured to conform with 
specification established by the ESS CSO. PCI SAQ 1.4.a, b 

g. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 1 – Build and Maintain Secure Network and 
Systems – shall be subject to an annual review. 

 
10.4(2) Vendor Defaults and Other Security Parameters.  Activities to manage 
system passwords and other security parameters shall conform to the following 
requirements: 
 

a. All vendor-supplied defaults shall be changed prior to the installation of a 
system on any network which provides access to cardholder data. PCI 
SAQ 2.1.a 

DR
AF
T

57



Updated 092319 

 

b. Configuration standards for all system components shall be documented 
and reviewed not less than annually. Configuration standards and settings 
shall be updated and applied as new vulnerability issues are identified. PCI 
SAQ 2.2.a 

c. Only one primary function will be implemented per ESS virtual system 
component or device. PCI SAQ 2.2.1.b 

d. Non-console administrative access shall be encrypted. PCI SAQ 2.3 
e. An inventory of all systems component in scope for PCI DSS shall be 

maintained and it shall be updated concurrent with any changes made. PCI 
SAQ 2.4.a, b 

f. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 2 – Vendor Defaults and Other Security Parameters 
– shall be subject to an annual review. 

 
10.4(3) Protect Cardholder Data.  Activities to protect stored cardholder data shall 
conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. Cardholder data shall not be maintained or permanently stored on ESS 
systems. PCI SAQ 3.1 

b. Temporary storage and retention time of cardholder data on ESS systems 
shall be limited to the minimum amount required to receive and transmit 
the information to a designated payment gateway provider, or limited to 
the minimum amount required for legal, regulatory or business 
requirements. PCI SAQ 3.1.a 

c. Cardholder data temporarily stored on ESS systems shall be automatically 
deleted after the data has been successfully transmitted to and received by 
a designated payment gateway provider. PCI SAQ 3.1.b, c 

d. ESS applications which include payment functions or integrations shall 
display only the last four digits of any primary account number (PAN) to 
any ESS personnel. Other digits of a PAN shall not be visible or shall be 
masked. PCI SAQ 3.3 

e. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 3 – Protect Cardholder Data – shall be subject to an 
annual review. 

 
10.4(4) Encrypt Transmission of Cardholder Data.  Activities to encrypt 
transmission of cardholder data across open, public networks shall conform to the 
following requirements: 
 

a. Appropriate cryptography and security protocols shall be used to 
safeguard sensitive cardholder data during transmission over open, public 
networks. PCI SAQ 4.1.a 

b. User messaging technologies of any kind shall not be used to transmit 
cardholder data. PCI SAQ 4.2.a, b 

c. The transmission of any cardholder data shall be conducted through the 
use of TLS version 1.2 or later PCI SAQ Appendix A2 

DR
AF
T

58



Updated 092319 

 

f. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 4 – Encrypt Transmission of Cardholder Data – 
shall be subject to an annual review. 

 
10.4(5) Vulnerability Management Program.  Activities to protect all systems 
against malware and regularly update anti-virus software or programs shall 
conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. Appropriate anti-virus software capable of detecting, removing, and 
protecting against malicious software shall be implemented. PCI SAQ 5.1 

 Anti-virus software and definitions shall be kept current. PCI SAQ 
5.2.a 

 Automatic updates and periodic scans shall be enabled. PCI SAQ 
5.2.b 

 Anti-virus software shall be configured to generate audit logs. PCI 
SAQ 5.2.c 

b. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 5 – Vulnerability Management Program – shall be 
subject to an annual review. 

 
10.4(6) Secure Systems and Applications.  Activities to develop and maintain 
secure systems and applications shall conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. A risk identification and ranking system shall be developed and 
updated not less than annually. PCI SAQ 6.1 

b. ESS shall provide for the timely application of security patches for any 
software operating on ESS systems, and updating or replacing 
software which is has been deprecated or is no longer supported by the 
software publisher. PCI SAQ 6.2.a 

c. ESS applications shall be developed and maintained following 
recognized secure coding practices. PCI SAQ 6.3.a For example: 

 https://wiki.sei.cmu.edu/confluence/display/seccode/Top%2B1
0%2BSecure%2BCoding%2BPractices or 

 https://www.owasp.org/index.php/OWASP_Secure_Coding_Pr
actices_-_Quick_Reference_Guide 

Information security shall be addressed through the software-
development life cycle. PCI SAQ 6.3.b 

d. Primary account numbers shall not be used for testing or development. 
PCI SAQ 6.4.3 

e. ESS software which is related to the receipt, transmission or temporary 
storage of any cardholder data shall be subjected to a code review and 
appropriate testing to verify that it will not adversely affect the secure 
handling of cardholder data. PCI SAQ 6.4.5.3.b 

f. ESS developers shall participate in a training or educational session 
regarding current best practices for secure coding techniques. PCI 
SAQ 6.5.b 

DR
AF
T

59



Updated 092319 

 

g. ESS shall periodically subject ESS software to an appropriate 
application vulnerability assessment and utilize appropriate 
applications to detect and prevent web-based attacks. PCI SAQ 6.6 

h. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 6 – Secure Systems and Applications – shall be 
subject to an annual review. 

 
10.4(7) Access Control Measures.  Activities to restrict access to cardholder data 
by business need to know shall conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. Access to ESS business and payment systems which may involve 
access to certain cardholder data shall be limited to system 
administrators, and authorized personnel who may be required to 
provide support and assistance to ESS customers with payment issues 
and processes. Personnel with privileges to access ESS business and 
payment systems shall be designated by the ESS Project Manager or 
Administrator. PCI SAQ 7.1.a 

b. Authorized personnel who may be required to provide support and 
assistance to ESS customers with payment issues and processes may 
access payment information through one of the following access 
points. PCI SAQ 7.1.1 

 E-Submission:Maintain E-Submitter:Maintain Payment 
Account 

 Payment:Maintain Transactions 
 The usaepay.com console 

c. System administrators shall have universal privileges for all ESS 
system components. PCI SAQ 7.1.1 

d. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 7 – Access Control Measures – shall be subject 
to an annual review. 

 
10.4(8) Access Identification and Authentication.  Activities to identify and 
authenticate access to system components shall conform to the following 
requirements: 
 

a. Users shall only access system components with individual usernames 
and passwords or pass phrases. Shared or generic usernames are 
prohibited. See also 10.x(b) Monitor and Test Networks. Password or 
pass phrases must be changed every 90 days. PCI SAQ 8.1.1, 8.2.4.a 
and 8.5. 

b. Access for any terminated users shall be immediately deactivated, and 
inactive user accounts shall be disabled after 90 days of inactivity. PCI 
SAQ 8.1.3 and 8.1.4 

c. Third party remote access accounts except when authorized by the 
ESS Project Manager or Administrator. PCI SAQ 8.8.1.5.a and b 

DR
AF
T

60



Updated 092319 

 

d. User access shall be locked after six attempts, and the lockout duration 
shall be 30 minutes. PCI SAQ 8.1.6.a and 8.1.7 

e. User re-authentication shall be required if a session has been idle for 
more than 15 minutes. PCI SAQ 8.1.8 

f. User authentication shall require a response to a challenge question in 
certain circumstances. PCI SAQ 8.2 

g. Multi-factor authentication shall be implemented not later than 
December 31, 2020. PCI SAQ 8.3 

h. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 8 – Access Identification and Authentication – 
shall be subject to an annual review. 

 
10.4(9) Restrict Physical Access.  Activities to restrict physical access to 
cardholder data shall conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. ESS systems and equipment which receive, transmit or temporarily 
store any cardholder data shall be located in a secure data center which 
complies with PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI SSC for 
Requirement 9 – Restrict Physical Access. PCI SAQ 9.1 

b. Physical access to systems which receive, transmit or temporarily store 
any cardholder data shall be restricted to individuals designated by the 
ESS Project Manager or Administrator or the ESS CSO. PCI SAQ 9.3 

c. The physical security of all media and media back-ups, and an 
inventory of all media shall be reviewed annually. PCI SAQ 9.5.1 and 
9.7.1.b 

d. Media and media back-ups containing cardholder data shall be 
destroyed when it is no longer needed for business or legal reasons. 
The retention and destruction of any media shall otherwise conform to 
the policies specified in Section 1.12 of the ESS Policies and 
Procedures. Cardholder data on retired electronic media shall be 
rendered unrecoverable. PCI SAQ 9.5, 9.8.b and 9.8.2 

e. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 9 – Restrict Physical Access – shall be subject to 
an annual review. 

 
 
 
10.4(10) Monitor and Test Networks.  Activities to track and monitor all access to 
network resources and cardholder data shall conform to the following 
requirements: 
 

a. ESS shall enable audit trails for all system components which have 
access to network resources and cardholder data. Automated audit 
trails shall be maintained and monitored. Audit Trails shall be 
appropriately secured. PCI SAQ 10.1.a, 10.2, 10.3, 10.5, 10.6 

DR
AF
T

61



Updated 092319 

 

b. Users shall only access system components with individual usernames 
and passwords or pass phrases. PCI SAQ 10.1.b 

c. ESS system clocks and times shall be synchronized with appropriate 
time synchronization technology, and changes to time settings shall be 
logged and monitored. PCI SAQ 10.4 and 10.4.2.b 

d. Logs associated with audit trails shall be retained for one year, and 
logs for the most recent three-month period shall be readily available 
for analysis when needed. PCI SAQ 10.7.b and 10.7.c 

e. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 10 – Monitor and Test Networks – shall be 
subject to an annual review. 

 
 
10.4(11) Test Security Systems and Processes.  Activities to regularly test security 
systems and process shall conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. ESS shall quarterly implement processes to detect and identify any 
wireless access points connected to ESS applications which receive, 
transmit or temporarily store any cardholder data. PCI SAQ 11.1 

b. ESS shall quarterly conduct internal and external network vulnerability 
scans. PCI SAQ 11.2.1.a 

c. External vulnerability scans shall by conducted by an Approved 
Scanning Vendor (ASV). PCI SAQ 11.2.2a 

d. Rescans shall be implemented to verify that high risk vulnerabilities 
are resolved. PCI SAQ 11.2.1.b 

e. ESS shall annually perform internal and external penetration testing or 
after any significant infrastructure or application changes. PCI SAQ 
11.3.1.a 

f. To the extent practicable, ESS shall segment the cardholder data 
environment (CDE) from other network components – PCI SAQ 
11.3.4 

g. ESS shall implement systems to detect and prevent intrusion, and to 
alert the CSO of any intrusion event. PCI SAQ 11.5.b 

h. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 11 – Test Security Systems and Processes – shall 
be subject to an annual review. 

 
 
10.4(12) Information Security Policy.  Activities to maintain an information 
security policy shall conform to the following requirements: 
 

a. This Chapter and associated operational policies shall be reviewed 
annually. PCI SAQ 12.1.1 

b. ESS staff shall provide for an annual risk assessment for ESS payment 
systems. PCI SAQ 12.2.a, b 

DR
AF
T

62



Updated 092319 

 

c. ESS staff shall receive regular updates on activities relating to ESS 
security policies. PCI SAQ 12.6.a, b, c and 12.6.2 

d. ESS Account and Customer Support personnel shall monitor the PCI 
DSS compliance activities of authorized payment service providers. 
PCI SAQ 12.8 

e. ESS staff shall develop and maintain an appropriate incident response 
plan. PCI SAQ 12.10 

f. Compliance with all other PCI DSS requirements specified by the PCI 
SSC for Requirement 12 – Information Security Policy – shall be 
subject to an annual review.  

 
Effective date. The ESS Payment Security Standards established in this section 
10.4, shall be effective and implemented by December 31, 2020. 
 
New Chapter 10 adopted 11.7.19.   

DR
AF
T

63



 

 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
AND 

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 
DOV COLLABORATION CHARTER 

 
SCOPE (The breadth, or area to capture. Frames the beginning and end of the project.) 
 
This collaboration will modernize the Declaration of Value (DOV) process that starts 
with the submission by taxpayers to recorders of a DOV pursuant to Iowa Code 428A.1 
and the provision of public access to the information as required under IAC 701.79.6. 
 
OBJECTIVES (What the team wants to accomplish during event - a more narrowed 
focus of the intent of the scope.) 
 

1. IDR receipt of data and images from Iowa Land Records related to DOV. 
2. IDR receipt of data from assessors relevant to specific transactions described by 

the DOV. 
3. IDR transmission of complete DOV records to Iowa Land Records. 
4. Access to DOV information by taxpayers via Iowa Land Records. 

 
GOALS 
 

1. Provide public access to documents and records  
2. Reduce overall costs of administration 
3. Preserve and maintain public records 
4. Reduce record preservation costs 
5. Improve collaboration between local governments and state agencies 

 
 
PARTICIPANTS 
 
IDR Sponsor:  Julie Roisen, Division Administrator 
IDR Facilitator:  Kristina DeLisi 
Local Government Facilitator:  Lucas Beenken, ISAC 
 
Working Group Participants: 
  
Susan Chambers, Program Manager, Iowa Dept. of Revenue 
Jon Wolfe, Program Manager, Iowa Dept. of Revenue 
Travis Case, President, Iowa Recorders Association 
Kris Colby, Recorder,Winnebago County 
Denise Allan, Recorder,Jasper County  
Stacie Herridge, Recorder,Story County  
Bob Rafferty, Esq. 
Phil Dunshee, Project Manager, ESS-Iowa Land Records 

64



Current High Level Process Steps 

1. Taxpayer submits transfer documents with DOV and GHS
2. Recorder indexes transfer document and provides recording information for DOV

and GHS
3. Recorder transmits DOV to Assessor
4. Assessor completes assessor information
5. Assessor submits completed form to IDR
6. IDR receives paper DOVs (from Assessors) and subsequently images and data

enters from image
7. Examiners review selected records and make calls
8. Sales lists are published for assessor review
9. Examiners make changes to data based on assessor review
10. Final median sales ratios calculated for equalization
11. Produce statistical measures
12. Publish annual sales ratio study
13. DOVs available for public review

Schema 

Recorder Data 

InstrumentNumber 

Book 

Page 

InstrumentDate 

RecordingDate 

TotalTransferTax 

TransferTaxState 

AmountPaidForRealPropertyDovLine3 

Grantor 

Grantee 

Legal 

RelatedDocumentNumber 

IMAGE ‐ Page 1 DOV 

Data to ILR 

RelatedDocumentNumber 

SingleClassPrimaryClassification 

DualClassPrimaryClassification 

SingleDualClassTotalAssessedValue 

65



DR
AF

T

66



 

 

 

DR
AF

T

67



 
 
From: phil@clris.com  
Sent: Sunday, November 3, 2019 1:20 PM 
To: ICRA‐DOV Working Group 
Subject: Department of Revenue Working Group 
 
Good morning, 
 
Last Friday I had the opportunity to meet with Susan Chambers with the Department of Revenue to have 
some preliminary technical discussions and to discuss their expectations on processes and deliverables. 
Per the discussion at the introductory meeting I had been asked to develop a draft project plan and cost 
estimate. This was a fruitful conversation and I have a much better idea about what to plan for.  The 
biggest unknown we have at this point is what will we need to ask the local service providers to do to 
make all of this work. Do we need to invent a new process or can we modify some existing processes 
that will minimize “new work” by your local providers (Tyler, Cott, Solutions, etc.).  
 
There is more discussion to occur, but based on this preliminary conversation here are some things we 
may need to account for. 
 

1. The DOV received by the Department will need to include the recording reference number 
assigned to the conveyance document by the county.  So if a County assigns a reference number 
of Book 2019 and Page 12345 to a deed, that needs to appear on the image of the DOV sent to 
DOR. 

2. The DOR will want the index information from the conveyance document included in the data 
for the DOV sent to them as a part of the document “package”. It should really be identical, 
right?  Parties, location description data (lot, block or section, township for example), recording 
date. The reference numbers of course. 

3. They want the public to be able to access the DOV through the ILR web site. 
4. When accessing the DOV through ILR – they want to have the associated references for the 

conveyance document visible and possibly with active links so if you were viewing the 
conveyance document you could see or link directly to the DOV 

5. The first page of the DOV includes the phone numbers for the buyer and seller. They may want 
us to redact the phone numbers before they are posted publicly. 

 
My initial thinking is the process currently used for the Groundwater Hazard Statement Could be 
replicated.  This might be the option that could provide the least amount of work for ILR and for your 
local service providers.  What do you think about that? 
 
Here are some questions and observations that you might want to consider. 
 
Consistency in Assigning Reference Numbers. And, how to display the reference number for a 
conveyance document on the DOV?  Assigning a reference Number to the DOV which is the same as the 
conveyance document – perhaps with a common prefix – might be an answer – such as DOV201912345.  
 
Counties do not consistently assign reference numbers for GWH. For example: 
 
Boone   G193215 related to Warranty Deed 193215 – the Associated Reference is present 

68



Clayton 2019R02485 related to Warranty Deed 2019R02484 – the Associated Reference is present 
Dallas  Book 2019 Page 15921 related Warranty Deed Book 2019 Page 15920 to parties Josef Miller – the 
Associated Reference is NOT present – Recording Date: September 3 
Grundy GWH2019‐0224 related to Warranty Deed 2019‐1626 – the Associated Reference is present 
Jasper 201900005289 related to Warranty Deed  201900005288 related to parties Robert Cupples – the 
Associated Reference is NOT present – Recording Date: September 23 
Story GWH2019‐01346 related to Warranty Deed 2019‐8102 – the Associated Reference is present 
Winnebago GWH2019‐0220 related to Warranty Deed 2019‐1461 – the Associated Reference is present 
 
For planning purposes, would ICRA be open to considering a standard Reference Number convention for 
DOV documents? 
 
While not directly related – should/could ICRA consider a standard Reference Number convention for 
GWH documents? A conversation for another day, perhaps. 
 
Completing Associated Reference Numbers. 
As noted in the sample above – not all counties consistently assign associated references in their indexes 
and/or they are not being transferred to Iowa Land Records. 
 
Local County Archive. 
Will you want to provide public access to the DOV records locally in your office or – for those counties 
which are able – access on your own web sites? 
****************** 
Again – this was just a preliminary conversation. As the discussion proceeds we will gather more 
information about the Department’s Requirements.  Please give these topics some thought.  I have this 
as a general discussion agenda item at the ESS meeting next week. No decision making – just providing 
them with an update and plans for an upcoming meeting.  Please let me know if you would like to 
arrange a conference call or web conference to have some discussion before the joint meeting occurs on 
November 21. 
 
Thanks and have a great week! 
 
Phil 
 
 

69



Data Aggregation and Analysis 

One of the challenges of preparing this Reducing Document Rejections paper was the lack of any 
consistent or reliable data concerning the reasons and causes for document rejections. It seemed 
that every recording jurisdiction, state and national region defined terms differently. There was no 
common language for rejection reasons and no way to consistently aggregate or interpret data. Even 
document processing companies and land records portals that work with multiple recording 
jurisdictions often rely upon “free form” text to communicate about rejection reasons. 
 
Land Records Management Systems (LRMS), land records processing portals, eRecording vendors, 
and document submitters are encouraged to use the definitions and organize them into their 
respective workflows and user interfaces as they deem appropriate. As long as the common 
definition and unique code value are preserved, and correctly assigned and mapped to each 
rejection reason, then it will be possible to track rejection data. 
 

Considerations For Implementation 

Determining how to incorporate a list of more than 150 rejection reasons into a recorder's workflow 
for reviewing documents submitted for recording is daunting. Simply listing all the possible 
rejections is impractical. 
 
A suggested first step for a recording jurisdiction is to track and document the most common 

rejection issues they encounter, and then map those issues to the rejection definition structure 

outlined in this Appendix. The LRMS vendors and the interfaces used for reviewing and 

processing documents then can begin to incorporate these terms and codes in their respective 

workflows.  

One approach is to begin with the "top level" rejection reasons that are associated with the main 
rejection categories and subtopics. A list of 13 to 18 general rejection reasons may be easier to 
implement. These rejection reasons, as illustrated below, could be presented to a recorder as a check 
box list or a menu. A method for specifying the more detailed rejection reasons could be added later 
- perhaps with a free form text field,  a secondary or "fly-out" menu. Providing a method for a 
recorder to specify "favorites" may also be helpful. 
  

70



 
 
 Top Level Menu   

Check Box 
Selection  Menu Item Name  Mapped To: 

 Wrong Jurisdiction  WJ01 

 Customer Courtesy  CC01 

 Document Formatting  DF01 

 Image Quality  IQ01 

 Incorrect Information  II01 

 Missing Information  MI01 

 Payment Error  PE01 

 Notary Related ‐ II  II76 

 Notary Related ‐ MI  MI85 

 Supporting Document‐II  II118 

 Supporting Document‐MI  MI43 

 Legal Description‐II  II43 

 Legal Description‐MI  MI58 

 Party Information‐II  II85 

 Party Information‐MI  MI103 

 Preparer Information‐II  II91 

 Preparer Information‐MI  MI121 

 Tax Related  II124 
 

Usage of these codes will enable PRIA stakeholders to work together and aggregate document 
rejection data and analyze it across sub‐state regions, states, and regions within the United 
States. Whichever approach is used, if a rejection reason is mapped to the correct PRIA rejection 
reason code listed in this appendix, then communications between submitters and Recorders can be 
improved. This information can be a powerful tool for creating training and education activities 
to help reduce the rejection of documents, and to improve productivity and efficiency in the 
recording process. To paraphrase Peter Drucker, “If we can measure it, we can improve it!” 
 
************************* 
Summary 

 Removed “Reserved” Items 

 Renumbered Codes to re‐establish a skip sequence for future additions 

 Change the Skip Sequence from 2 to 3 for II and MI Categories 

 Maintained the Skip Sequence of 2 for all other Categories  

 Added the new “Incorrect Tax Issue – Unspecified” to provide a top level menu choice for Tax 

Related issues 

 

71



Customer Courtesy & Wrong Jurisdiction 

The inclusion of a rejection reason in this table does not imply that all parties agree on the validity of a rejection reason. 
Updated: 103019 

The category “Customer Courtesy” includes several rejection reasons which may be applicable in situations where either the recording of a 

document is not required, or the customer has recognized an error before the Recorder’s office has had an opportunity to review it. 

Category  Code  Short Title  Short Definition 

Customer 
Courtesy  CC01 

Unspecified Courtesy 
Issue ‐ Other 

The recording jurisdiction, as a courtesy to the submitter, declines the document, but the 
reason is not specified 

Customer 
Courtesy  CC03  Customer Request 

A customer recognizes an error prior to review by the recording jurisdiction, and submits a 
request for a rejection to allow for the correction of the error 

Customer 
Courtesy  CC05  Document Not Required 

A document is submitted but it is not required for a transaction, the transaction is already 
completed, or the submission is a duplicate 

Customer 
Courtesy  CC07 

Document Type 
Prohibited  A document type is submitted but cannot be recorded by law or administrative policy 

Customer 
Courtesy  CC09  Extraneous Document  A document is extraneous or unnecessary, and recording is not required 

Customer 
Courtesy  CC11  Recorder Discretion 

The recording jurisdiction, as a courtesy to the submitter, declines the document to prevent 
an unnecessary recording or charge to the customer 

The category “Wrong Jurisdiction” addresses one common reason for document rejections; the document has been submitted to the wrong 

county. For example, a document intended for recording in Polk County, Florida is mistakenly sent to Polk County, Iowa. 

Category  Code  Short Title  Short Definition 

Wrong 
Jurisdiction 

WJ01  Wrong Jurisdiction  A document is submitted to the wrong recording jurisdiction 

72



Document Formatting 

The inclusion of a rejection reason in this table does not imply that all parties agree on the validity of a rejection reason. 
Updated: 103019 

 

The category “Document Formatting” includes rejection reasons relating to the format of the document or the form in which information is 

presented in the document, but not the content or information provided in the document. Issues range from margins and font sizes to the 

physical condition of a submitted document. 

 

Category  Code  Short Title  Short Definition 

Document 
Formatting  DF01 

Unspecified Document 
Formatting Issue ‐ Other 

A document does not conform to published formatting requirements, but the error is 
not specified 

Document 
Formatting  DF03 

Altered Documents Not 
Accepted ‐ Label  A document which has been altered, e.g., with a label, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF05 

Altered Documents Not 
Accepted ‐ Stamp  A document which has been altered, e.g., with a stamp, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF07 

Altered Documents Not 
Accepted ‐ Unspecified  A document which has been altered and is not accepted, but the error is not specified 

Document 
Formatting  DF09 

Altered Documents Not 
Accepted ‐ White Out  A document which has been altered, e.g., with "white out", is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF11  Blank Pages Not Accepted  The form of the document, specifically with respect to blank pages, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF13  Border Style Not Accepted 

A document with a line or border in the margin area, or which obscures information 
in the document, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF15  Color Not Accepted  Images with color are not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF17 

Content In Margin Not 
Accepted 

The form of the document, specifically with respect to the placement of content in 
the margins, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF19  Defective Document 

The document is submitted submitted in paper form, but cannot be processed 
because it can't be read or scanned 

Document 
Formatting  DF21 

Document Type ‐ 
Rescission ‐ Not Accepted 

The recording state or jurisdiction, does not accept a document rescinding a 
previously recorded document 

Document 
Formatting  DF23 

Document Type Prohibited 
Electronically 

The recording state or jurisdiction does not accept the document type for the 
electronic submission of documents. 

73



Document Formatting 

The inclusion of a rejection reason in this table does not imply that all parties agree on the validity of a rejection reason. 
Updated: 103019 

Category  Code  Short Title  Short Definition 

Document 
Formatting  DF25 

Documents Images 
Combined 

A required supporting document (such as a tax or environmental document) which 
should be submitted as a separate document, is combined with another document or 
image. 

Document 
Formatting  DF27  English Text Required  A document is not accepted in a language other than English 

Document 
Formatting  DF29  File Size Too Big  The size of an electronic file is too big to be processed 

Document 
Formatting  DF31 

First Page Content 
Required 

Required information for a document, such as party names or associated references, 
is not included on the first page 

Document 
Formatting  DF33 

Font Size or Type Not 
Accepted 

The form of the document, specifically with respect to the font size, style or type, is 
not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF35 

Form Prohibited ‐ 
Unspecified  The form of a document is not accepted for non‐specific reasons 

Document 
Formatting  DF37 

Form Prohibited By 
Jurisdiction 

The form of a document, for reasons specific to a recording jurisdiction, is not 
accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF39 

Image Format Not 
Accepted 

Images which are not compatible with the local land record management system are 
not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF41 

Incorrect Legal Description 
Format 

Legal description information about unplatted or platted land (section, township, 
range or lot, block, unit) does not conform to the formatting requirements of the 
recording jurisdiction 

Document 
Formatting  DF43 

Incorrect Tax 
Identifier/PIN Format 

Parcel identification information, such as a PIN (parcel identification number or other 
tax identifier), does not conform to the formatting requirements of the recording 
jurisdiction 

Document 
Formatting  DF45 

Insufficient Space For 
Recording Stamp  There is insufficient space on the first page for the recording stamp 

Document 
Formatting  DF47  Margin Size Not Accepted 

The form of the document, specifically with respect to the margin size, is not 
accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF49 

Notary Acknowledgement 
or Affidavit Not Accepted 

The form of the document, specifically with respect to the notary acknowledgement 
or affidavit, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF51 

Notary Seal Obscures 
Printed Text  The notary seal obscures other text in a document 

Document 
Formatting  DF53 

Notary Stamp Format Not 
Accepted 

The form of the document, specifically with respect to the notary stamp format, is 
not accepted 

74



Document Formatting 

The inclusion of a rejection reason in this table does not imply that all parties agree on the validity of a rejection reason. 
Updated: 103019 

Category  Code  Short Title  Short Definition 

Document 
Formatting  DF55  Original Required 

The recording state or jurisdiction does not accept documents which they believe are 
not originals 

Document 
Formatting  DF57  Page Orientation 

The orientation of pages in a document (landscape, portrait, upside down, or 
readable left to right) is incorrect 

Document 
Formatting  DF59  Page Size Not Accepted 

The form of the document, specifically with respect to a page size (dimension) other 
than a standard letter or legal sized document, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF61  Pages Out of Order  The order of pages in a document is incorrect 

Document 
Formatting  DF63  Party Names Not Printed  Party names (people or organizations) are not printed 

Document 
Formatting  DF65 

Photo Images Not 
Accepted  Images with color or black and white photos not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF67 

Prepared By/Return To 
Not Accepted 

The form of the document, specifically with respect to the formatting of the prepared 
by/return to information, is not accepted 

Document 
Formatting  DF69  Re‐Recording Required 

The recording state or jurisdiction does not accept the form of the document; a re‐
recording is required in lieu of a corrective instrument 

Document 
Formatting  DF71 

Tax Code Format Not 
Accepted 

The recording jurisdiction does not accept the tax code in the same format as other 
jurisdictions in a region 

Document 
Formatting  DF73 

Top Margin Size Not 
Accepted 

The size of the blank top margin on the first page of a document does not conform to 
formatting requirements  

 

 

75



1

phil@clris.com

From: Mark Ladd <mladd@simplifile.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 5, 2019 4:17 PM
To: phil@clris.com; 'Larry Burtness'; 'Larry Burtness'; 'Carol Foglesong'; 'Stevie Kernick'
Subject: RE: Thanks for the good discussion today. There was progress.  Look forward to further conversation

Energetic engagement is always good.  
 
I know the Board is continually looking for ways to be certain that the direction they are leading the organization is truly 
representative of the desires of the membership.  To me, this discussion was a reminder to keep that quest in the 
forefront of our thinking. 
 
We’ve grown up a lot as an organization – and we will soon be passing the baton to another generation.  What is the 
best way to codify the values we hold to, without binding ourselves up in red tape that keeps us from fulfilling our 
mission.  These are good and necessary things for us to ponder as an organization. 
 
I don’t know if our physical paths will cross again before the Winter Symposium.  But I’ll be back in Lexington soon and 
I’ll raise a bourbon to all of you and toast to your health and happiness for the coming year! 
 

Mark Ladd – VP Regulatory & Industry Affairs 

Simplifile | ICE Mortgage Services 

5072 N 300 W | Provo, UT 84604 

Tel: +1 800.460.5657 x1066 | Cell: +1 262.498.0850 

mladd@simplifile.com 

intercontinentalexchange.com | simplifile.com 
 

From: phil@clris.com <phil@clris.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 5, 2019 3:59 PM 
To: 'Larry Burtness' <larry.burtness8@gmail.com>; 'Larry Burtness' <lburtness@figure.com>; Mark Ladd 
<mladd@simplifile.com>; 'Carol Foglesong' <carol.foglesong@gmail.com>; 'Stevie Kernick' <stevie@imiae.com> 
Subject: Thanks for the good discussion today. There was progress. Look forward to further conversation 
 
We will puts some additional ideas together (not in the form of a bylaws change ;‐)   ). You do the same! 
 
Good luck at the upcoming Board meeting and Happy Thanksgiving! Yes – it is that time! 
 
Phil 

76



 

 

Response to Iowa County Recorders Association 

 

Iowa Asks            Bylaws Committee Response 

Why are you eliminating the Registered Observer 
membership? Is anyone currently a member in this 
category? 

The Registered Observer category is a holdover 
from the early days of the Property Records 
Industry Joint Taskforce (PRIJTF) and is no longer 
applicable to the way in which PRIA now conducts 
business.  There are no members in this category, 
nor have there been any over the last 8‐10 years. 
This category was used in the early days of PRIA to 
designate individuals attending a conference, who 
were not PRIA members, enabling them to 
participate in the discussions while holding them to 
the intellectual property and anti‐trust policies. 

The current Bylaws provide that “Action by 
Consent” can be taken without a meeting if all of 
members agree. Explain why it is being changed to 
“majority.” Could you provide a recent example of 
an Action by Consent? 

This change is to assure that one, or a handful of, 
members cannot hold up needed action by ignoring 
a call to vote or voting against an action.  There 
have been no “action by consent” items in recent 
years. 

Regarding “Voting List and Voting,” can you provide 
some background information about why 
information like telephone numbers and email 
addresses are being removed? 
 

Because this section refers to the voting list at a 
meeting of the members during which a vote would 
be taken, the only information needed to authorize 
an individual’s right to vote is the organization 
name and the voting member’s name. 

Regarding the Duties of the Treasurer, the proposed 
amendment would remove the requirement for a 
bond. What is the reason for this change? Is a bond 
no longer needed? 
 

The treasurer does not handle any funds but only 
approves invoices to be paid and verifies that the 
check presented matches the invoice being paid.  
This function is handled electronically.  The 
management company, IMI Association Executives, 
handles the funds and its employees are fully 
bonded with checks and balances in place, and 
approved by a CPA firm. 

Regarding Authorization of Indemnification, who 
will make the “determination” that an individual did 
not meet the standard of conduct? 

This section refers to the “corporation,” which is 
the PRIA Board of Directors making that 
determination. 

Can you provide an example of a Waiver of Notice?  PRIA has never issued a Waiver of Notice. 
 

This section refers to amendments to the bylaws being proposed by ICRA. 

Article II – Purpose and Objectives. “While we 
agree that a core mission of PRIA is to develop 
models for standards and best practices in the 
property records industry, we do not believe it is 
appropriate for PRIA to directly or indirectly 

PRIA has been encouraging “adoption” of its 
published standards and best practices since it was 
incorporated back in 2002.  Using the word 
“consideration” would contradict the association’s 
current practice.  

77



 

 

promote the passage of specific federal or state 
legislation or policies. 
 
Recorders, vendors and other stakeholders are free 
to exercise their rights to communicate with policy 
makers through their respective organizations, but 
the PRIA organization should remain neutral and 
should not engage in lobbying activity. 
 
Specifically, we wish to advance the following 
amendment to the Bylaws. 
 

1. Amend Article II, numbered paragraph III to 
read as follows: 

 
“III. Encourage consideration (rather than 
adoption) of such model standards and 
practices;” 

 
Adoption is defined as “acceptance, 
implementation, embracing and approval.” 
 
Consideration is defined as “thought, deliberation, 
reflection and contemplation.” 

2. Amend Article II, by adding the following 
unnumbered paragraphs following 
paragraph V: 

 
“PRIA shall not directly, or indirectly through 
any Alliance or other arrangement, engage 
in lobbying or activities relating to the 
passage of federal or state legislation. PRIA 
shall not track legislation or prepare tool kits 
or resource materials for the purpose of 
promoting or opposing legislation. PRIA may 
monitor and report on the status of various 
legislative activities relating to the property 
industry.” 

 
“PRIA shall publish and disclose to the 
members information about any Alliance 
formed with other property industry related 
groups. Such information shall include but 
not be limited to the following: the groups 
participating in the Alliance, the purpose of 
the Alliance, the name and contact 
information for the principal representative 
of each group in the Alliance, and any terms 
or agreements which may exist among the 
members of the Alliance.” 

The committee discussed the history of PRIA 
working with alliance partners (MISMO, ATIM, 
ALTA, AEA) to develop standards and positions on 
topics of importance to the industry overall.  This 
collaboration has been ongoing through the years 
and benefits both PRIA and the alliance partners. 
 
Some examples of advocacy: 
 

1. PRIA developed materials to be used at the 
state level to advocate for passage of 
URPERA.   

2. PRIA has been actively involved with the 
Uniform Law Commission in establishing 
model legislation on behalf of the industry.   

3. A group of PRIA members met with former 
U.S. Sen. Bob Corker to educate him about 
the issues associated with a national 
database for land records. 

 
Different levels of advocacy have been interwoven 
into the way PRIA operates for over 15 years. 
 
In addition, the committee concurred that what 
Iowa is recommending for this section are “policies” 
and thus not appropriate for the bylaws.   

78



 

 

 
The suggestions that Iowa is making, regarding 
adoption of standards, alliances and advocating are 
not in line with PRIA’s purpose, mission statement 
and objectives of the association.  
 
Bylaws usually address three things:  shareholder 
responsibilities, officer responsibilities and director 
responsibilities.  Policy statements generally are not 
appropriate for bylaws, which are typically more 
procedural. 

Article IV Board of Directors “We ask that the PRIA 
Board of Directors take more direct action to 
ensure that the members are informed of all 
activities, actions and proposed actions of the 
Board.  Recorders operate in a public environment 
with high expectations for openness and 
transparency when considering organization and 
policy issues, and PRIA should reflect these same 
values.   Specifically, we wish to advance the 
following amendment to the Bylaws.   
 
Amend Article IV – Board of Directors, by inserting 
the following new numbered section. 
 
“##. Agendas, Summaries and Supporting Materials. 
The Board of Directors shall timely publish and 
make available to the membership the following 
items associated with any official meeting including 
the Annual Meeting, Regular Meetings and Special 
Meetings of the Board. 

 An agenda which shall be posted no less 
than 24 hours prior to a meeting and which 
calls out any item which may be acted on by 
the Board, the Executive Board, or the 
membership 

 A summary of the actions taken by the 
Board or the membership at any meeting 
which shall be posted immediately following 
the review and approval of the summary by 
the Board at the next meeting 

The Bylaws Committee agreed that the materials 
requested could be made available to the 
membership.  Currently the agenda is posted to the 
landing page of the members‐only website the 
same day the board binder is distributed to the 
board, and the minutes have always been available 
to the membership once they are approved by the 
board (the month following).  The committee 
recommends that the entire board binder be 
posted for member review, recognizing there may 
be from time to time topics that are not intended 
for public viewing until they have been vetted by 
the board.  In such a case, these items will not be 
included in the board binder. 
 
The committee, however, agreed that a 
requirement to post these documents is a policy 
and, therefore, not bylaws material.  This 
suggestion will be considered as an addition to the 
Operating Rules slated for review in 2020.  
 

79



 

 

 The documents presented to the Board 

which describe the background of any topic 
and the proposed action to be taken 

 Any resolution or document presented to 

the Board for voting by electronic means 
Upon request, members shall receive a notification 
via email or other contemporaneous means when 
agendas, summaries and meeting materials are 
posted.” 

“Additionally, in accordance with Article III of the 
current Bylaws, we request that you provide us with 
the following information. 

 

 Voting List and Voting. Please provide us 
with the name, email address and phone 
number of each member who will be eligible 
to vote at the Annual Meeting in August 
2019. We understand that registration is still 
open and that the attendance list is not yet 
final. For this reason, we would request a 
preliminary list based on the registrations 
received as of August 16, 2019. We would 
then ask for a final list on Tuesday, August 
27, 2019. 

 Proxies. Article III provides that “the method 
and procedures for voting by proxy shall be 
determined by the Secretary of the 
Corporation or its designated agent, and 
such method and procedures shall be 
provided to members entitled to vote.”   
 

Please provide any necessary information 
concerning the method and procedures for proxy 
voting at the Annual Meeting in August 2019.  For 
example, will you require a signed statement of 
some kind to indicate that a regular member has 
granted their proxy to another regular member?” 

In recent years, the question of proxies has been 
moot as voting, which has primarily been used for 
electing the Board of Directors, has taken place 
electronically.   However, if the bylaws vote is slated 
for in person voting during the Winter Symposium 
rather than offered electronically, then the offer of 
proxies would be necessary.   
 
If Iowa offers an amendment to the bylaws at the 
Winter Symposium then, assuming the voting 
members at the Winter Symposium approve, that 
amendment would then be added to the bylaws, 
and reissued for 30‐day review to the full 
membership, followed by another vote on the 
amended bylaws. 
 

 

80



1

phil@clris.com

From: phil@clris.com
Sent: Friday, July 19, 2019 3:27 PM
To: 'Stevie Kernick'; 'stevie@pria.us'; Zachary Zaharek; 'larry.burtness8@gmail.com'; 'Larry Burtness'
Subject: Bylaws
Attachments: PRIAMEMO-071919-final.pdf

Stevie, Larry and Zach, 
 
We have had the opportunity to review the draft amendments to the Bylaws and wish to offer some comments. 
 
Regarding the proposed amendments advanced by the Board of Directors, we would generally acknowledge that the 
redline versions have been posted on the web site and that Larry has encouraged members to review them in his “In 
Touch” articles in May and June. But we believe it would be helpful to provide the members with a written explanation 
and rationale behind the various changes. The members should have this information well before the Annual Meeting 
convenes, in our opinion. You have 30 minutes scheduled for the Annual meeting, and this doesn’t provide much time 
for a presentation or for questions.  
 
Some natural questions members might ask are: 

o Why are you eliminating the Registered Observer membership? Is anyone currently a member in this 
category? 

o The current Bylaws provide that “Action By Consent” can be taken without a meeting if all of members 
agree. Explain why it is being changed to “majority.” Could you provide a recent example of an Action by 
Consent? 

o Regarding “Voting List and Voting”, can you provide some background information about why 
information like telephone numbers and email addresses are being removed? 

o Regarding the Duties of the Treasurer, the proposed amendment would remove the requirement for a 
bond. What is the reason for this change? Is a bond no longer needed? 

o Regarding Authorization of Indemnification, who will make the “determination” that an individual did 
not meet the standard of conduct? 

o Can you provide an example of a Waiver of Notice? 
 
We understand that these changes are intended to clean up some language and align with current practices. Members 
should have a better understanding of their own Bylaws and operating rules, and to this end, some additional 
information may be helpful to them. 
 
******************* 
On behalf of the Iowa County Recorders Association we also wish to propose a few amendments to the Bylaws. These 
proposed amendments are described in the attached memo. 
 
We ask that you clarify the procedures which should be followed to put these proposals before the membership for 
action. It is understood that you may wish to confer with the Governance Committee. However, it is our belief that 
advanced approval of the Governance Committee or the Board of Directors is not required, and that a member may 
independently present a motion to amend the Bylaws provided that the proposed amendments to the Bylaws are 
submitted to the members at least 30 days prior to the meeting. By the submittal of this message, we respectfully 
request that you immediately forward a copy of the attached memo to the PRIA membership so that the amendments 
described herein may be considered at the Annual meeting currently scheduled for August 28, 2019. 
 

81



2

Additionally, in accordance with Article III of the current Bylaws, we request that you provide us with the following 
information. 
 

 Voting List and Voting. Please provide us with the name, email address and phone number of each member who 
will be eligible to vote at the Annual Meeting in August, 2019. We understand that registration is still open and 
that the attendance list is not yet final. For this reason, we would request a preliminary list based on the 
registrations received as of August 16, 2019. We would then ask for a final list on Tuesday, August 27, 2019. 

 Proxies. Article III provides that “the method and procedures for voting by proxy shall be determined by the 
Secretary of the Corporation or its designated agent, and such method and procedures shall be provided to 
members entitled to vote.” Please provide any necessary information concerning the method and procedures 
for proxy voting at the Annual Meeting in August, 2019.  For example, will you require a signed statement of 
some kind to indicate that a regular member has granted their proxy to another regular member? 

 
Thank you very much for receiving these requests. We look forward to seeing you at the conference. 
 
Phil 
                 
 
 
 

82



Electronic Services System - Iowa Land Records 
Iowa County Recorders Association 

8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, Iowa  50131 

 
 
July 19, 2019 
 
 
To:  Larry Burtness 
  Zachary Zaharek 
  Stevie Kernick 
 
From:  Phil Dunshee, Project Manager 
 
Re:  PRIA By Laws and Operating Rules 
 
We have had the opportunity to review the draft amendments to the Bylaws, and we wish to follow up 
on some of the suggestions which were made in conjunction with the PRIA strategic planning in April, 
2019. These suggestions are not represented in the amendments proposed by the Board of Directors. 
Therefore, we wish to present them to the PRIA members in the form of some proposed amendments 
for consideration at the upcoming Annual meeting. 
 
 
Article II – Purpose and Objectives. While we agree that a core mission of PRIA is to develop models for 
standards and best practices in the property records industry, we do not believe it is appropriate for 
PRIA to directly or indirectly promote the passage of specific federal or state legislation or policies. 
Recorders, vendors and other stakeholders are free to exercise their rights to communicate with policy 
makers through their respective organizations, but the PRIA organization should remain neutral and 
should not engage in lobbying activity. 
 
Specifically, we wish to advance the following amendment to the Bylaws. 
 
1.  Amend Article II, numbered paragraph III to read as follows: 
 

“III.  Encourage consideration adoption of such model standards and practices;” 
 

 
2.  Amend Article II, by adding the following unnumbered paragraphs following paragraph V. 
 

“PRIA shall not directly, or indirectly through any Alliance or other arrangement, engage in 
lobbying or activities relating to the passage of federal or state legislation. PRIA shall not track 
legislation or prepare tool kits or resource materials for the purpose of promoting or opposing 
legislation. PRIA may monitor and report on the status of various legislative activities relating to 
the property industry.” 
 
“PRIA shall publish and disclose to the members information about any Alliance formed with 
other property industry related groups. Such information shall include but not be limited to the 
following: the groups participating in the Alliance, the purpose of the Alliance, the name and 
contact information for the principal representative of each group in the Alliance, and any terms 
or agreements which may exist among the members of the Alliance.”

83



 

 
 

 
Article IV ‐ Board of Directors. We ask that the PRIA Board of Directors take more direct action to 
ensure that the members are informed of all activities, actions and proposed actions of the Board. 
Recorders operate in a public environment with high expectations for openness and transparency when 
considering organization and policy issues, and PRIA should reflect these same values. Specifically, we 
wish to advance the following amendment to the Bylaws. 
 
  Amend Article IV – Board of Directors, by inserting the following new numbered section. 
 

“##.  Agendas, Summaries and Supporting Materials. The Board of Directors shall timely 
publish and make available to the membership the following items associated with any official 
meeting including the Annual Meeting, Regular Meetings and Special Meetings of the Board. 

o An agenda which shall be posted no less than 24 hours prior to a meeting and 
which calls out any item which may be acted on by the Board, the Executive 
Board, or the membership 

o A summary of the actions taken by the Board or the membership at any meeting 
which shall be posted immediately following the review and approval of the 
summary by the Board at the next meeting 

o The documents presented to the Board which describe the background of any 
topic and the proposed action to be taken 

o Any resolution or document presented to the Board for voting by electronic 
means 

   
Upon request, members shall receive a notification via email or other contemporaneous means 
when agendas, summaries and meeting materials are posted.” 
 

 
 
Thank you very much for your assistance and consideration. We look forward to hearing from you. 
Please let us know if you have questions. 
 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
 
cc.  Diane Swoboda Peterson, Woodbury County, Iowa 
    ESS Coordinating Committee member 
  Travis Case, Grundy County, Iowa 
    Iowa County Recorders Association President 
  Iowa County Recorders Association Executive Board 
  ESS Coordinating Committee Members 
   

84



Electronic Services System - Iowa Land Records 
Iowa County Recorders Association 

8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, Iowa 50131 

April 22, 2019 

To: PRIA Board of Directors 

From: Phil Dunshee, Project Manager A1f It} . 

PRIA Strategic Planning Topics f/ 3/~ Re: 

Colleagues, 

I look forward to participating in the discussion this week. In anticipation of the meeting, and on behalf 
of the Iowa County Recorders Association, we would like to share a few ideas and thoughts for your 
consideration. Generally, we hope the Board will consider some ideas which would elevate and expand 
the participation and active engagement of County Recorders in PRIA, and to freely disseminate the 
knowledge and best practices ideas which emerge from the work of the various PRIA Committees. We 
would also ask that you consider some ideas for improving methods for gathering and reporting data 
and information, and for respecting the boundary between the development of policy 
recommendations or models, and the direct advocacy of legislative and executive policy making in our 
respective states. 

County Recorder Engagement 
We would like to encourage PRIA membership participation for County Recorders in higher numbers 
throughout the U.S. Here in Iowa we have had a history of strong participation and engagement in PRIA. 
We know it could be higher, and we observe that it is not as strong in other States or regions. Here are a 
few ideas that could be explored. 

• Consider a discounted or even "free" membership for an elected leader of the respective State 
County Recorders Association. Grant them status as a "Regular" member, with the expectation 
that they or their designee will attend both PRIA conferences each year, and that they organize 
their resources and volunteers to at least monitor and share information with their fellow 
Recorders. 

• Consider a "Statewide" membership dues option, whereby for a certain fee or sponsorship level 
through an Association, all of the Recorders in a State would be Regular members of PRIA with 
all the privileges associated with that membership including voting, etc. 

• Consider allocating a portion of the PRIA budget (or reserve) to the creation of a full-time PRIA 
staff position with the mission of facilitating participation by and communication among County 
Recorders throughout the United States. The primary intent of this is to elevate the engagement 
of County Recorders and the expression of their ideas and needs through the PRIA organization. 
While this position would help disseminate PRIA knowledge, standards and best practices to 
County Recorders, we wish to be clear that their primary role is to act as an advocate for their 
perspective as public servants, not as an advocate for the business perspective. This is NOT 
intended to replace PRIA Local, but rather as a supplement to that work already being done. 

85



Dissemination of Knowledge and Best Practices 
Sections 9 and 12 of the Operating Rules include references to the dissemination of information. Section 
9 states: "PRIA shall take such steps as are appropriate to disseminate to the public the recommended 
work products that it develops. The Board, consistent with the objective of making recommended work 
products available as widely as possible, may protect the intellectual property rights of such work 
products." Section 12. 1 includes the following sentence: "The objectives of the organization favor free 
exchange of ideas, practices. procedures. and systems for the development of national standards and 
the overall enhancement of the property records industry." [Emphasis added] 

We wish to express support for the free exchange of ideas, and that the goal of PRIA making 
recommended work products available as widely as possible. When balancing the interests of any PRIA 
intellectual property with the objective of promoting free and open communication, the goal of making 
information available as widely as possible should prevail. The following are some ideas to consider in 
support of this position. 

• Make all PRIA work products freely available to the property records industry including County 
Recorders. Any participant in the industry, should have access to work products - even if they 
are not members of PRIA. Limiting information access to PRIA members, or providing it through 
limited channels such as a web site with "members only" access, or at conferences where only a 
portion of the membership attends, serves as an echo chamber that may not effectively advance 
the goals of the industry or County Recorders. 

• Create new communication channels such as topical, moderated biogs by PRIA members and 
subject matter experts; or free podcasts on various issues of interest. 

• Continue to develop and implement webinars, perhaps with no fees, and evaluate whether 
resources are available to support travel expenses for the speakers bureau program . 

• Enable web conferences of Committees and Project Teams to be "broadcast" over the Internet 
so that members could "listen" from their work stations without having to dial in. Members 
could also participate via chat pod, if a member of a committee or project team acted as a co
presenter or facilitator. 

• When deemed appropriate by the Committee or Project Team Co-Chairs, record the web 
conference meetings so that participants and members could listen or view the web conference 
at a later time. Recordings can be password protected if necessary, as we know that not all 
meetings are suitable for a wide audience. 

• Consider creating an on line "digest" for reporting on committee and project team (and Board of 
Directors) activities. MISMO has an interesting platform for this function that may be 
considered. 

• Proactively communicate issues and topics being considered by the Board to the PRIA 
membership. Currently, meeting minutes and agendas are posted on the PRIA web site (thank 
you!). More would be better. Consider options for: 

o Pushing e-mail notices to interested members 
o Publish a short article in the newsletter to describe topics that are expected to come up 

in the next meeting 
o Invite questions from members seeking further information 
o Post background documents provided to the Board for their deliberations 

86

pdunshee
Highlight



o Post substantive policy documents at least one month prior to a proposed policy action 
to be considered by the Board 

• Consider whether a less cumbersome PRIA attribution statement such as "Includes information 
developed and published by the Property Records Industry Association (PRIA)." is sufficient to 
fulfill the "intellectual property" attribution. Generally, is now a good time to review the IP 
policy for practicality and relevance? 

Property Records Information Research 
We recognize that many PRIA volunteers have worked very hard to gather and maintain data 
information about electronic recording jurisdictions, the volume and types of electronic recording, 
recording policies and practices in jurisdictions through the United States, pending legislation, and much 
more. But the extent to which volunteers can engage in the necessary follow-up to secure higher 
response rates and improve the quality of data is limited. This is an area where the expenditure of 
resources on professional or academic assistance may help produce better or higher quality results. 
Better research and information can lead to better work products and produce better results for the 
industry. Policy making also is better if it is data-driven. For these reasons, with the financial resources 
available to the organization, it may be appropriate to consider securing some external assistance. This 
could come in several forms. Options include: 

• Hiring a part-time or full-time research associate to focus on efforts to gather and 
maintain information and data of importance to the members and the industry. 

• Compensation for a research organization already affiliated with PRIA to produce and 
publish desired information. 

• Establishing a relationship with an academic institution or business school with a focus 
on real estate or property to assist with research activities. (We know of a school in 
Cedar Falls, Iowa that might be interested, but it might make sense to identify an 
institution proximate to the area where the PRIA management firm is located.) 

• Co-sponsor, provide matching funds, or otherwise help underwrite "proof of concept" 
projects or planning discussions to explore certain ideas at a deeper level (balancing the 
interests of Recorders and businesses) - the topics of block chain, GIS and others come 
to mind here, and could be pursued in partnership with other stakeholder groups. 

There will still be a need for PRIA members to volunteer in this area, but with a designated human 
resource to guide and facilitate things, perhaps more could be accomplished. The County Recorder 
"advocate" role which was referenced previously might also be able to increase response rates from 
recording jurisdictions. 

PRIA Advocacy 
In a meeting with Mark Ladd many months ago, he stated that "PRIA has a long tradition of advocacy." It 
can truthfully be said that promoting standards is one of those accepted advocacy areas. However, 
when a background paper, or standard or model legislation is presented by PRIA, the line between 
advocacy of an idea and "tracking" legislation, and the act of lobbying can be blurred. Article II of the 
PRIA bylaws appropriately promotes the ideas of "bringing together", "consensus", and 
"trustworthiness". While advocating for standards and best practices, PRIA must also be mindful of the 
potential for unintended consequences and be respectful of the "diversity" of viewpoints within regions 
and states. As an example, the Iowa General Assembly is considering legislation which would establish a 
"flat" fee for recording groundwater statements at a fee level far below what would be required of any 
other document. If enacted, it would establish a troubling precedent for future consideration of 
legislation that might include other document types. The "Predictable Recording Fees" background 

87

pdunshee
Highlight

pdunshee
Highlight



paper statement "Fee policy changes to improve the predictability of fees are not intended to negatively 
affect local budgets" didn't seem to be considered by the stakeholders or policy makers. 
For these reasons, we wish to suggest that Section 8.1 of the Operating Rules be amended to include a 
statement such as the following: "While advocating for standards and best practices, PRIA will consider 
and respect the circumstances and environment of each region and state. Additionally, PRIA shall not 
engage in direct advocacy or lobbying for the passage or defeat of legislation in a government member's 
region or state, including advocacy through an allied organization." 

Consideration should also be given to openly disclosing to the PRIA membership the existence of any 
Alliance agreement established under Section 7 of the Operating rules, especially relating to any 
advocacy activities. The terms of any Alliance agreement should be published and distributed to the 
membership. 

In summary, we hope these comments will help stimulate discussion, and we are certainly open to other 
ideas. I look forward to seeing you later this week. 

cc. Diane Swoboda Peterson, Woodbury County, Iowa 
ESS Coordinating Committee member 

Travis Case, Grundy County, Iowa 
Iowa County Recorders Association President 

Iowa County Recorders Association Executive Board 
ESS Coordinating Committee Members 

88

pdunshee
Highlight

pdunshee
Highlight


	ESS Coordinating Committee Agenda110719
	ESS Meeting Summary_9.19.19pd
	ESS Subcommittee Nominations2020
	ESScommittee - Financial Reports-110719
	11 NOVEMBER FINANCE PACKET
	BOA Credit Card Statement
	BOA Credit Card Rec

	11 NOVEMBER FINANCE PACKET255
	Fund 255 County Recorders Report
	Fund 255 P & L
	Fund 255 P & L Quarter
	Fund 255 Balance Sheet
	Fund 255 Budget vs Actual


	TOS Communications
	BOA-CY2019-BudgetAmendment-110719-Proposed
	Fund 255 FY 2020 Final Budget Amendment110719
	BOA Treasury Management Memo110719
	Cost of Living Adjustment
	ESS 2020 Engagement Letter
	2020 ESS Rafferty Group Engagement (4 nov 2019))
	2020 ESS Calendar-pd-draft
	Chapter 10-Security092319
	DOV Collaboration Charter
	CombinedRejectionTablespd110419
	Customer Courtesy--pd103019
	Document Formating--pd103019

	PRIA-BylawsCombined
	PRIA-emailthread1
	PRIAMEMO-071919-final

	PRIA-PostMeetingCommunication



